
LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
MEETING AGENDA
December 12, 2017

1. 9:00 a.m. Agenda and Consent Agenda
a. RE: November 28, 2017 Minutes and Summary Minutes
b. RE: November 30, 2017 Minutes 
c. RE: December 7, 2017 Minutes
d. RE: November 2017 Transfers

2. 9:05 a.m. Claims (5 min)

3. 9:10 a.m. Nik Kadel, Ditch Inspector (10 min)
a. RE: Ditches Update

4. 9:20 a.m. Joshua Mankowski (10 min)
a. RE: CLIMB Theatre Contract

5. 9:30 a.m. Pam Simonette, Auditor-Treasurer (5 min)
a. RE: Credit Card Request for Tyler Luethje
b. RE: Woesthoff Farm Lease

6. 9:35 a.m. Cindy Shaughnessy, Public Health (15 min)
a. Amended Immtrack Joint Powers Agreement 
b. Contracted Case Management Agreement with Thomas Allen
c. Family Home Visiting Grant: regional application letter of intent
d. 2017 Budget Adjustment
e. Other

7. 9:50 a.m. Tyler Luethje, Parks Director (10 min)
a. RE: Master Plan for Lake Washington County Park

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 1 / 241



8. 10:00 a.m. CIP Public Hearing (10 min)

9. 10:10 a.m. Amy Beatty, Recycling Agreement with City of Le Center (5 min)

10. 10:15 a.m. Jeff Neisen, IT Director ( 15 min)
a. RE: Office 2016 License Purchase & AS400 upgrade. 

11. 10:30 a.m. Dave Tiegs, Highway Engineer (20 min)

12. 10:50 a.m.  Human Resources (10 min)

13. 11:00 a.m. Reconvene Public Hearing for County Ditches 19, 28, 42, 52 and 69 
(20 min)

14. 11:20 a.m. Darrell Pettis, County Administrator
a. RE: Miscellaneous

15. Commissioner Committee Reports

16. Future Meetings

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 2 / 241



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 12, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 1

9:00 a.m. Agenda and Consent Agenda

RE: November 28, 2017 Minutes and Summary Minutes

RE: November 30, 2017 Minutes 

RE: December 7, 2017 Minutes

RE: November 2017 Transfers

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 3 / 241



Minutes of Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting
November 28, 2017

The Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners met in regular session on Tuesday, November 28, 
2017 at 9:00 a.m. at the Courthouse in Le Center, Minnesota.  Those members present were: 
Steve Rohlfing, Lance Wetzel, John King and Dave Gliszinski. Brent Christian and Darrell Pettis 
were also present. Joe Connolly was excused.

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the agenda.

On motion by King, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
consent agenda:

● Approved the November 21, 2017 County Board Minutes and Summary Minutes

Kathy Brockway, Planning & Zoning Director appeared before the Board with several items for 
approval.

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved via roll call 4-0 with 
Connolly absent, the Board approved a Conditional Use Permit to Arcurus Community Solar 
Garden LLC, Edina, MN, (Applicant); Lundin LLC (Lundin Family LLC), Madison Lake, MN, 
(Owner) to allow the applicant to construct a 1 MW solar garden in an Agriculture “A” District 
and Mineral Resources “MR” Overlay District.  Property is located in the SE quarter of Section 
33, Kasota Township. The application was approved with the following conditions and findings 
are on file at the Planning and Zoning Office. 

1. Project Manager to work with the landowner to provide adequate screening on the South 
and East side of the property and submit a copy to the department.

2. All construction parking shall be provided within the project area (No parking on county 
road).

3. Bond provided to the County prior to construction.

On motion by King, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved via roll call 4-0 with 
Connolly absent, the Board approved a Conditional Use Permit to Derrick Ledvina, Cleveland, 
MN, (Applicant); Richard Ledvina, Cleveland, MN, (Owner) to allow grading, excavating and 
filling of approximately 44 cubic yards of material in the shore impact zone, 76 cubic yards 
outside the shore impact zone, 40 cubic yards in the bluff, 80 cubic yards in the bluff impact 
zone; construct 2 retaining walls in the bluff for the construction of a septic system located in the 
bluff in a Recreational Residential “RR” District, on a Recreational Development “RD” lake, 
Lake Jefferson.  Property is located at Lot 4, Cape Horn Subdivision, Section 1, Cleveland 
Township. The application was approved with the following conditions and findings are on file 
at the Planning and Zoning Office.

1. Retaining walls shall be designed by an engineer.
2. Obtain an engineering certificate to ensure that the design is sound and that wall and 

bluff stability will be maintained.  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 4 / 241



Cindy Westerhouse, Human Resources Director came before the Board with several items for 
approval.

On motion by King, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved to hire 
Hector Macias as a full time Community Service Aide- Interpreter in Human Services as a Grade 
4, Step 1 at $15.97 per hour, effective December 18, 2017.  

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
accept the retirement request from Kathy Siebsen, full time Community Support Technician in 
Human Services, effective December 21, 2017.  

On motion by King, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
post and request the merit list for a full time Community Support Technician in Human Services, 
Grade 6, Step 1 at $17.94 per hour.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
grant a personal leave to Katie Vrzal, full time Administrative Assistant in the County Attorney’s 
Office, effective November 13, 2017 to February 13, 2018.  

Darrell Pettis, County Administrator appeared before the Board with a discussion on German – 
Jefferson SSTS update. The Board directed County staff to continue working with landowners as 
needed to complete septic projects.

Cindy Shaughnessy, Public Health Director appeared before the Board with several items for 
discussion and approval.

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
appoint Dr. Daniel Berg as Medical Consultant, effective January 18, 2018 and approved the 
Medical Consultant Agreement.

The Board consented to move forward with a contract with Thomas Allen for contracted Case 
Management services for several CCB clients in Duluth.

Commissioner Committee Reports:

Commissioner Gliszinski attended County Ditches 19, 28, 42, 52 and 69 landowner meetings.

Commissioner Rohlfing attended an Immtrack meeting.

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board adjourned until 
Tuesday, December 12, 2017 at 9:00 a.m.

ATTEST: _____________________________    _______________________________
          Le Sueur County Administrator   Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 5 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 6 / 241



Summary Minutes of Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting, November 28, 2017
●This is only a summary publication per MN Statutes 375.12 and 331A.01 sub. 10.  The complete 
minutes are on file in the Le Sueur County Administrator’s Office at 88 S Park Ave. Le Center, MN and 
are available at www.co.le-sueur.mn.us.
●Approved the agenda. (Wetzel-Gliszinski)
●Approved the consent agenda. (King-Wetzel)
●Approved a Conditional Use Permit to Arcurus Community Solar Garden LLC, Edina, MN, (Applicant); 
Lundin LLC (Lundin Family LLC), Madison Lake, MN, (Owner) with conditions and findings are on file 
at the Planning and Zoning Office. (Wetzel-Gliszinski)
●Approved a Conditional Use Permit to Derrick Ledvina, Cleveland, MN, (Applicant); Richard Ledvina, 
Cleveland, MN, (Owner) with conditions and findings are on file at the Planning and Zoning Office. 
(King-Gliszinski)
●Approved to hire Hector Macias, Community Service Aide- Interpreter in Human Services.  (King-
Wetzel)
●Approved the retirement request from Kathy Siebsen in Human Services. (Wetzel-Gliszinski)  
●Approved to post and request the merit list for a full time Community Support Technician in Human 
Services. (King-Gliszinski)
●Approved a personal leave to Katie Vrzal in the County Attorney’s Office. (Gliszinski-King)  
●Approved to appoint Dr. Daniel Berg as Medical Consultant and approved the Medical Consultant 
Agreement. (Wetzel-King)
●Adjourned until Tuesday, December 12, 2017 at 9:00 a.m. (Wetzel-King)
ATTEST: Le Sueur County Administrator   Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 7 / 241

http://www.co.le-sueur.mn.us/


Minutes of the Le Sueur County Ditches 19, 28, 42, 52 and 69 Meeting
Le Sueur County Courthouse, Le Center, MN

November 30, 2017
10:00 a.m.

The Le Sueur County Ditch Board met on Thursday, November 30, 2017 at 10:00 a.m.at the Le 
Sueur County Courthouse in Le Center, Minnesota. Those Commissioners present were Steve 
Rohlfing, Lance Wetzel, John King and Dave Gliszinski. 

Also present were Le Sueur County Administrator Darrell Pettis, Le Sueur County Auditor-
Treasurer Pam Simonette, Le Sueur County Ditch Inspector Nik Kadel, Attorney John Kolb with 
Rinke-Noonan and Ditch Viewers Ron Ringquist, Al Kerber and Bill Anderson.

At 10:00 a.m. Chairman Rohlfing opened the final hearing on the redetermination of benefits and 
damages for Le Sueur County Ditches 19, 28, 42, 52 and 69.

Attorney John Kolb gave an overall procedural background of the ditches followed by a viewer 
procedure presentation by Ron Ringquist. 

Attorney John Kolb gave an overview of the history of County Ditch 19 and Ron Ringquist gave 
an overview of the viewers’ findings.

The meeting was then opened for public testimony on County Ditch 19.

There were 2 public comments by Brian Davis and a letter from Patrick Goggins.

Chairman Rohlfing closed public comments for County Ditch 19.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
direct staff to prepare findings and an order consistent with the proceedings, including responses 
to all comments received through the public comment process; that the draft findings and order 
be written to affect adoption of the determined benefits and confirmation of the viewers’ reports.

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
recess the County Ditch 19 hearing to the Board’s regular meeting on December 12th at 11:00 
a.m.

Attorney John Kolb gave an overview of the history of County Ditch 28 and Ron Ringquist gave 
an overview of the viewers’ findings.

The meeting was then opened for public testimony on County Ditch 28.

Administrator Pettis read two letters received from Dan Sullivan and Garth & Sheryl Weidall.

Chairman Rohlfing closed public comments for County Ditch 28.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 8 / 241



On motion by King, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
direct staff to prepare findings and an order consistent with the proceedings, including responses 
to all comments received through the public comment process; that the draft findings and order 
be written to affect adoption of the determined benefits and confirmation of the viewers’ reports; 
and recessed the County Ditch 28 hearing to the Board’s regular meeting on December 12th at 
11:00 a.m.

Attorney John Kolb gave an overview of the history of County Ditch 42 and Ron Ringquist gave 
an overview of the viewers’ findings.

The meeting was then opened for public testimony on County Ditch 42.

There was one public comment from Gary Odenthal.

Chairman Rohlfing closed public comments for County Ditch 42.

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
direct staff to prepare findings and an order consistent with the proceedings, including responses 
to all comments received through the public comment process; that the draft findings and order 
be written to affect adoption of the determined benefits and confirmation of the viewers’ reports; 
and recessed the County Ditch 42 hearing to the Board’s regular meeting on December 12th at 
11:00 a.m.

Attorney John Kolb gave an overview of the history of County Ditch 52 and Ron Ringquist gave 
an overview of the viewers’ findings.

The meeting was then opened for public testimony on County Ditch 52.

There was one public comment from Brian Vetter.

Chairman Rohlfing closed public comments for County Ditch 52.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
direct staff to prepare findings and an order consistent with the proceedings, including responses 
to all comments received through the public comment process; that the draft findings and order 
be written to affect adoption of the determined benefits and confirmation of the viewers’ reports; 
and recessed the County Ditch 52 hearing to the Board’s regular meeting on December 12th at 
11:00 a.m.

Attorney John Kolb gave an overview of the history of County Ditch 69 and Ron Ringquist gave 
an overview of the viewers’ findings.

The meeting was then opened for public testimony on County Ditch 69.

There were no public comments.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 9 / 241



Chairman Rohlfing closed public comments for County Ditch 69.

On motion by King, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
direct staff to prepare findings and an order consistent with the proceedings, including responses 
to all comments received through the public comment process; that the draft findings and order 
be written to affect adoption of the determined benefits and confirmation of the viewers’ reports; 
and recessed the County Ditch 69 hearing to the Board’s regular meeting on December 12th at 
11:00 a.m.

On motion by King, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board adjourned.

ATTEST: _____________________________    _______________________________
          Le Sueur County Administrator   Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 10 / 241



Minutes of the Le Sueur County Ditches 41 and 61 Informal Meeting
Le Sueur County Courthouse, Le Center, MN

December 7, 2017
10:00 a.m.

The Le Sueur County Ditch Authority met on Thursday, December 7, 2017 at 10:00 a.m.at the 
Le Sueur County Courthouse in Le Center, Minnesota. Those Commissioners present were Steve 
Rohlfing, Lance Wetzel, John King and Dave Gliszinski. 

Also present were Le Sueur County Administrator Darrell Pettis, Le Sueur County Auditor-
Treasurer Pam Simonette, Le Sueur County Ditch Inspector Nik Kadel, Attorney Maury Noonan 
with Rinke-Noonan and Chuck Brandel, Engineer with ISG.

At 10:03 a.m. Chairman Rohlfing called the meeting to order for Le Sueur County Ditch 41.

Attorney Maury Noonan gave an overview County Ditch 41. 

Chuck Brandel presented a feasibility study and was available for questions.

Pam Simonette reviewed the current benefits and fund balance for County Ditch 41.

There were 2 public comments by Jerry Cooney and Anthony Beer.

Attorney Maury Noonan then gave an overview of County Ditch 61.

Chuck Brandel presented a feasibility study and was available for questions.

Pam Simonette reviewed the current benefits and fund balance for County Ditch 61.

There was one public comment from John McGillen.

No Board action was required for either of the ditches, and staff was directed to allow at least 
three months for landowners to decide if they want to move forward with any of the options 
presented.

On motion by King, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board adjourned.

ATTEST: _____________________________    _______________________________
          Le Sueur County Administrator   Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 11 / 241



Minutes of the Le Sueur - Scott Joint County Ditch 4 Informal Meeting
Le Sueur County Courthouse, Le Center, MN

December 7, 2017
9:00 a.m.

The Le Sueur - Scott County Joint Ditch Board met on Thursday, December 7, 2017 at 9:00 
a.m.at the Le Sueur County Courthouse in Le Center, Minnesota. Those Commissioners present 
from Le Sueur County were Dave Gliszinski and John King. The Commissioner present from 
Scott County was Barb Weckman Brekke. Le Sueur County Commissioner Joe Connolly and 
Scott County Commissioner Tom Wolf were excused. 

Also present were Le Sueur County Administrator Darrell Pettis, Le Sueur County Auditor-
Treasurer Pam Simonette, Attorney Maury Noonan with Rinke-Noonan and Chuck Brandel, 
Engineer with ISG. Nik Kadel, Le Sueur County Ditch Inspector and Jim Hentges, Scott County 
Ditch Inspector were also present.

Administrator Pettis called the informational meeting for Le Sueur – Scott Joint Ditch 4 to order 
and requested a nomination for the Joint Drainage Authority Chairperson.

On motion by King seconded by Weckman Brekke and unanimously approved, the Board 
nominated Dave Gliszinski as Chairperson. 

Maury Noonan gave an overview of the informational meeting. The Board agreed the keep the 
meeting informal and allow the public to comment at any time during the meeting.

Chuck Brandel summarized a feasibility study of Joint Ditch 4.

Pam Simonette presented information on the current benefits and account balance of the ditch.

There were two public comments from James Legg and Dave O’Brien.

Nik Kadel suggested an improvement of the ditch for a long term solution and Chuck Brandel 
recommended a redetermination of benefits prior to a repair or improvement.

No Board action was required, and staff was directed to allow at least three months for 
landowners to decide if they want to move forward with any of the options presented.

On motion by Weckman Brekke, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board 
adjourned.

ATTEST: _____________________________    _______________________________
          Le Sueur County Administrator   Le Sueur-Scott JCD 4 Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 12 / 241



November 2017 Transfers

#1670 Transfer 6,754.00 from Agency to Revenue
(October and November landshark)

#1671 Transfer 1,290.98 from Ditch to Road & Bridge
(Culvert and band – Ditch #62)

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 13 / 241



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 12, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 2

9:05 a.m. Claims (5 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 14 / 241



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 12, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 3

9:10 a.m. Nik Kadel, Ditch Inspector (10 min)

RE: Ditches Update

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 15 / 241



Le Sueur County Ditch Report: 12/1/17   =New  =Closed  white=current   = In Review

Drainage DB Repair # Date Received Township Section Landowner
Person Requesting 
Repair Problem/Proposed Work

Contractor
Cost 

Estimate
Start Date

Project 
complete 
Date

Final Bill 
Invoice

Notes

CD15 16-033 10/18/2016 Kilkenny 22
MCGILLEN,JOHN E & 
PAMELA K

MCGILLEN,JOHN E 
& PAMELA K Barnette 12/23/2016

Barnettes will be 
removing beaver 
dams. While they 
clean the ditch.

CD15 17-011 3/24/2017 Kilekenny 22
McgiLLEN,JOHN E & 
PAMELA K

mcGILLEN,JOHN E & 
PAMELA K Asked for a general cleanout around his property. Barnette 5950 4/1//2017

Waiting for them to 
clean it out. 

CD16 16-037 11/1/2016 Montgomery 18 TRINKA,BETTY A Culvert is failing, needs field review. 
Culvert needs cleaning 
around it

CD16 16-040 11/3/2016 Lexington 13 NYTES,JAMES L & RUTH A
clean out to the lake. Need DNR permits to proceed. Water control 
structure?

waiting on DNR water 
permit

CD16 16-041 11/3/2016 Montgomery 18 TRINKA,BETTY A clean out, need DNR permits, control structure? selly? 20566.4
Waiting for dnr 
permits

CD21 16-007 4/25/2016 Lexington 28 Joe Schloesser washing out next to culvert in driveway
Sent letters, no 
response

CD23 16-024 9/29/2016 Lexington 20
WIELAND,ROBERT A & 
CYNTHIA washouts due to heavy rain. side inlets? ditch plugged

Did a ditch inspection 
on about half the 
ditch. It's going to 
need a lot of work and 
a redetermination. 
Having a meeting with 
board about how to 
proceed.

CD23 16-044 11/14/2016 Don Westerman

Don Westerman wants the outlet structure for marks lake repaired 
before any ditch clean out takes place. Site needs to be visited and 
photos taken winter of 2016-17. 

drop inlet structure 
needs replacment. 

CD23 17-042 42940 Lexington 14 David, William B David, William B Culvert and crossing condition and history. Selly

4.5 diameter culvert, 
landowner wants to 
extend the culvert, will 
have to wait until 
crops come off to have 
project done.

CD26 17-039 42912 Lexington 30 BlaSCHKO,DANIEL L
Henery Macho/ 
operator mike Ditch clean

Shannon 
Kotasek 11/1/2017

fall cleanout once 
crops are off

CD28 17-023 4/26/2017 Derrynane 10
Woestehoff, David J & 
Krista

Woestehoff, David j 
& Krista Collapsing culvert, cannot safely get equipment over crossing. Selly 5/17/2017 11/30/2017 5,980.00$     finished.

CD31 16-055 42709 JAHN,BRIAN C FAMILY LP john Widmer where 31 and 44 meet is clogged with grass.

I inspected this and 
water seems to be 
flowing fine. CD44 will 
need cleaning in a year  
or two.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 16 / 241



Le Sueur County Ditch Report: 12/1/17   =New  =Closed  white=current   = In Review

CD34 17-037 6/26/2017 Sharon 11 Tiede, Dale L & Patrica Ann Tiede, Dale L & Patric  
Needs general cleaning, sloughs and nees inspection north of the 
area too. Zimmerman 10/20/2017 10/28/2017 10,305.00$  

cleaned from the road 
north of Pioneer 
power all the way 
south.

CD38 17-010 42817 Kilkenny 26 Braun, Josephine ann Jerome Miller Water backing up along a few culverts back in the wetlands. Zimmerman $21,000 Jul-17 8/25/2017 22,445.00$  

Replaced 3 culverts 
and reshaped spur 3. 
and cleaned the main 
ditch. Still have to 
seed the CRP.

CD40 16-061 42725 Montgomery 22 BAUER,LEROY O & BONNIE 
BAUER,LEROY O & 
BONNIE K

LO stopped in saying lots of sloughing and erosion along his land 
and further along the ditch

Land owner spread 
spoil on his own, I let 
him know he could be 
paid for his work but 
he was not interested.

CD40 17-004 1/12/2017 Montgomery 26 KORBEL,DALE & ALICIA Dan Gregor Banks are sloughing from excess rains and water
Need to site inspection 
for work

CD40 16-014 9/21/2016 Montgomery 28 KRAUTKREMER,DENNIS Ditch has been cleaned out and install a 30' culvert Havel

Land was too wet to 
finish cleaning by 
havel. 

CD40 17-003 1/4/2017 Montgomery 28
WENKER,JOHN D & 
THERESA Krautkramer needs ditch clean out Havel 7000 in progress

CD41 17-043 1/24/2017 Lexington 30 Beer, George Jerry Cooney Tile failing, Water siting in the field not draining in the culvert.

Tile collapsed, having 
it looked at by ISG and 
a meeting on Dec. 7th

CD43 17-007 2/3/2017 Lexington 21 MORAVEC,JACQUELYN M water not being able to get  into Tyler lake

Tyler lake has been 
looked at waiting on 
DNR to provide results 
of OWL. To see if we 
can clean into the 
lake.

CD44 16-035 10/20/2016 Lanesburgh 20 TIEDE,RUSTY & NANCY Rusty Tiede
Rusty Tiede called in to office describing water backing up in Main 
of CD#44.  Problem he said appears to be downstream.

CD 44 needs 
inspection for a few 
problems

CD44 16-054 11/30/2016 Lanesburgh 7 JAHN,BRIAN C FAMILY LP John Widmer plugged with grass at the point where 31 and 44 meet up.

CD45 16-048 42695 Derrynane 33 BLASCHKO,DANIEL L BLASCHKO,DANIEL L sloughing 40 yards from road. NE side of 221 zimmerman

being taken care of 
during the zimmerman 
clean.

CD45 17-029 42883 Derrynane 34 Binczik, Dianne C Rusty Tiede

Culvert crossing is being washed out, culvert is good but crossing is 
too small to get equiment across. Culvert is inverted 6inches from 
elevation shots taken. Needs to be put back to level grade. zimmerman

Taking bids from 
contractors for a clean 
out from marys lake to 
shae lake. This 
includes the culvert 
and the cleaning. 

CD45 17-050 11/17/2017 Derrynane 26 Binczik, Thomas Binczik, Thomas Beaver dam blocking up a culvert. Selly

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 17 / 241



Le Sueur County Ditch Report: 12/1/17   =New  =Closed  white=current   = In Review

CD45 17-047 10/3/2017 Lexington 3 Tiede, Leroy & doris Rusty Tiede
Ditch clean, beaver dame removal, culvert lower/ crossing repair 
and sloughing repair. Zimmerman  $ 22,910.00 11/20/2017 12/1/2017 22,910.00$  

this is all Cd45 project 
put into one. So this is 
the price for all the 
projects of CD45.

CD46 16-025 2016-09-29 Montgomery 28
KRAUTKREMER,GENE O & 
LINDA C Culvert in Disrepair. Rotting out. Havel

culvert installed need 
invoice.

CD51 17-006 2/2/2017 Cordova 5 Rich acres inc Anthony Beers/ Mike Check to see if needs ditch cleaning Selly  $ 17,000.00 11/1/2017
need invoice, partially 
paid.

CD53 17-038 6/26/2017 Lexington 7
Mager, Clarence A & 
Debra J Dale tiede Ditch cleaning and culvert removal Zimmerman 11/1/2017 11/18/2017 20,025.00$  

Cleaned the entire 
ditch and pulled a 
culvert.

CD57 17-051 43069 Kilkenny 3
Brockway, Richard & 
kathleen

Brookway, Richard 
& Kathleen

Beaver dams and beaver problems, going to trapp before clearing 
dams. Rollings

We have a trapper out 
ther along the ditch 
now.

CD58 17-012 3/28/2017 Cleveland 34 Steve Matejcek Steve Matejcek Wants ditch cleaned all the way to the lake.
Shannon 
Kotasek

Got the go ahead to 
clean to lake henry for 
falll clean! Need 
contractor and send 
out letters to land 
owners.

CD58 17-018 4/19/2017 Cleveland 29 Struck, Gerald A Lynn Loeffler Slough in ditch holding back water, a stuck prop?
Shannon 
Kotasek

cleaned part of ditch 
and removed 
obstruction.

CD59 16-017 9/23/2016 Elysian 3
Domonoske, Donald & 
Judy

Domonoske, Doanld 
& Judy

Asked about this same are again, will have to inspect in the spring 
for a clean out.

This stretch was 
attempted last year 
but it was too wet. 
Land owner asked for 
it to be looked at 
again. 10/2017

CD60 17-049 8/25/2017 Cleveland 2 McCabe, Barbara

Steel culvert has been eroding away and needs to be straightened 
for the county ditch. Also the cement bindings have broke apart 
which have created a big sink hole near the highway 99. Selly 11/1/2017 11/20/2017 18,078.10$  

Staightened the 
culvert to the county 
ditch so there wont be 
such a huge bank. 
Installed bindings on 
the cement part so it 
wont come apart.

CD61 16-013 9/20/2016 Cordova 23 THEIS,JOHN L & CANDI L David Novotny

Find where the tile has been plugged or blown out, repair that area 
to get water flowing again, were told to get a cost estimate before 
work could be done Pat Traxler 3/31/2017

Traxler Thinks the 
problem is the tile in 
the easment land on 
the Mcgillen land. Will 
have to look into it in 
the future. Waiting on 
invoice!  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 18 / 241



Le Sueur County Ditch Report: 12/1/17   =New  =Closed  white=current   = In Review

CD61 17-021 4/21/2017 Cordova 23 McgILLEN,JOHN E & PAMEL  David Novotny Tile Holding back water. Needs to be replaced or fixed.

having ISG make an 
engeneering report for 
the county to replace 
couty tile.

CD61 17-046 9/11/2017 Cordova 23
McgILLEN,JOHN E & 
PAMELA K david Novotny Clean open ditch for fall. 

Did inspection waiting 
until after meeting to 
do work.

CD62 17-040 7/11/2017 Lanesburgh 15 Picha, Constance Jeff Landsberg Crossing washing out from culvert starting at railroad. selly 7/11/2017 11/20/2017 3,690.00$     

Problems with 
railroad, crossing 
washed out, just 
replace county culvert 
and seperated it from 
railroad.

CD63 17-009 2017-15-3 Montgomery 35 Trcka, Steve & Theresa Mark Chicoine Needs inspections for cleaning, there is sloughing.
needs inspection. 
Holding off work

JD4 SCOTT 16-058 12/12/2016 Tyrone 1 LINDEMAN,LLOYD Lyle Wagner
Lyle wagner stopped in saying that he and a few neighbors think 
the ditch will have to be cleaned out

Needs inspection this 
spring.

JD5 RICE 17-002 1/3/2017 Kilkenny 10 SCHULTZ,JERRY L ken kline

In the Cannon River section of kilkenny, below Dora. Need to ok 
with DNR and Knish. the Bill should be split equally between JD5, 
CD40, CD57 and CD63- these are backed up by beaver dams with in 
the area. needs action. 

JD15 BE 17-008 2/16/2017 Washington 14 MCCARTHY,JAMES R Mark Krenik ditch clean out. zimmerman 5500

Ditch has had 
inspection and found 
out that there is a joint 
survey going on. 
Waiting for 
redeterminationation 
and survey to be done.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 19 / 241



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 12, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 4

9:20 a.m. Joshua Mankowski (10 min)

RE: CLIMB Theatre Contract

Staff Contact: Joshua Mankowski

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 20 / 241



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 12, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 5

9:30 a.m. Pam Simonette, Auditor-Treasurer (5 min)

RE: Credit Card Request for Tyler Luethje

RE: Woesthoff Farm Lease

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 21 / 241



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 12, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 6

9:35 a.m. Cindy Shaughnessy, Public Health (15 min)

Amended Immtrack Joint Powers Agreement 

Contracted Case Management Agreement with Thomas Allen

Family Home Visiting Grant: regional application letter of intent

2017 Budget Adjustment

Other

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 22 / 241



LE SUEUR COUNTY 
PUBLIC HEALTH  

 
88 South Park Avenue 
Le Center, MN 56057 

Phone (507) 357-8246  
 Fax (507) 357-4223 

 
Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting 
December 12, 2017 
 
Cindy Shaughnessy, Public Health Director 
 

 Agenda:  
 
1) Amended Immtrack Joint Powers Agreement 
 • County Attorney Brent Christian reviewed & approved the amended JPA  
 • JPA attached: page 5-6 amended to include auto-renewal language 
 • Request Board approval and signatures 
 
2) Contracted Case Management (CCM) agreement with Thomas Allen 
 • Brent Christian reviewed & approved the Purchase of Service Agreement 
 • Attached: POS Agreement; Exhibit A – Lead County Ramsey County Contract 
   for CCM; Exhibit B – Designated Roles & Responsibilities for CCM 
 • Request Board approval for Director to sign 
 
3) Family Home Visiting (FHV) Grant application SC region 
 • Attached: Letter of Intent to Apply 12-5-17; grant application due Jan. 12, 2018 
 • Applying for an expansion grant of the current Faribault-Martin program 
 • Counties: Faribault-Martin, Le Sueur-Waseca, Nicollet-Brown, Watonwan 
 • Request approval to move forward with grant application 
 
4) 2017 Budget Adjustment 
 • Request to adjust the 2017 budget  
 • Move $12,000 from account 124-6101 (perm. salaries under budget $34,000) 
 • Move $12,000 to account 124-6610 (equipment) to purchase sit stand stations 
 
5) Other 
 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 23 / 241



- 1 - 

South Central Regional Immtrack 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 

 
 

Article 1 
Enabling Authority  

 
THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the political subdivisions organized and existing 
under the Constitution and laws of the State of Minnesota, hereafter collectively referred to as 
“Parties,” and individually as “Party” which are signatories to this “Agreement.” 
 
Minnesota Statutes, Section 471.59 provides that two or more governmental units may by 
Agreement jointly exercise any power common to the contracting Parties; and 
 
Minnesota Statutes, Section 145A.04 provides that a political subdivision may implement a 
project to prevent and control communicable diseases, including vaccine-preventable diseases 
and to implement and maintain a regional immunization information system to assure age-
appropriate immunizations through complete and accurate immunization records available to 
public and private health care providers; and 
 
In consideration of the mutual promises and Agreements contained herein and subject to the 
provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Sections 471.59 and Minnesota Statutes, Section 145A.04 
and all other applicable statutes, rules, and regulations, the following Parties: 
 
Blue Earth County 
Brown County 

LeSueur County 
Nicollet County 

Waseca County 
Watonwan County 

 
hereto agree as follows: 

 

Article 2 
Purpose 

 
The Parties desire to establish a mechanism whereby they may jointly exercise powers common 
to each participating Party on issues requiring: 
 
A. Fulfillment of the Parties broad responsibilities to protect the health and welfare of their 

citizens. 
 
B. Age appropriate immunizations and reduction in the occurrence of vaccine-preventable 

disease through maintenance of complete and accurate immunizations records. 
 
C. Planning, development of policies, implementation, and direct management of the 

operations of a regional immunization information system. 
 
D. Establishment of procedures to add qualifying Parties to this Agreement. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 24 / 241



- 2 - 

E. Establishment of a mechanism whereby additional and/or alternative programs and 
services may be developed for the benefit of the Parties and in furtherance of the 
objectives of the Parties. 

 

 
 

Article 3 
Name  

 
The name of this entity shall be South Central Regional Immtrack hereinafter sometimes 
referred to as the Immtrack.   

 

Article 4 
Governance  

 
4.1 Governing Board.  A governing board shall be formed to oversee the operation of the 

Immtrack and shall be known as the Board. 
 

4.1.1. The Membership of the Governing Board shall be composed of one 
representative appointed by each participating county’s governing body.  The 
representative need not be a member of the governing body of the participating 
county but must be an agent thereof.  An alternate can be designated by each 
participating county’s governing body, in the event the member appointed to the 
Governing Board is temporarily unable to attend.  An alternate shall possess the 
same qualifications as the Governing Board Member.  Any designation of an 
alternate shall be in writing, signed by the appropriate county, and delivered to 
the Secretary of the Governing Board.  

 
4.1.2. Documentation.  Resolutions or other documentation of designation shall be filed 

with the Secretary of the Board. 
 
4.1.3. Members not Employees.  Members of the Board shall not be deemed to be 

employees of the Immtrack and will not be compensated, including per diem 
allowance, for serving on the Board.  For all purposes, including workers 
compensation, each member of the Board shall be considered to be an 
employee of the Party that made the appointment. 

 
4.2. Terms; Vacancies.  Board members shall serve until the appointing authority makes a 

change.  The appointing entity shall appoint a designee and/or alternate as soon as a 
vacancy occurs. 

 
4.3. Officers of the Board.  The Board shall elect a Chair and Vice Chair from its membership 

who shall serve for one year. 
 

4.3.1. Election of Officers.  The election of the Chair and Vice-Chair shall be conducted 
at the first board meeting of every year.  There is no restriction as to the number 
of terms. 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 25 / 241



- 3 - 

4.3.2. Additions to the Board.  The Board may elect or appoint such other officers as it 
deems necessary to conduct the affairs of the organization. 

 
4.3.3. Secretary/Treasurer.  The Board may elect or appoint a secretary/treasurer. 
 
4.3.4. Committees.  The Board shall have the authority to appoint such committees as it 

deems necessary to fulfill the purpose of the organization.   
 
4.4. Meetings.  The Board shall comply with Minnesota Statutes Chapter 13D (Open Meeting 

Law).  There shall be an annual meeting of the Board held in the first meeting of each 
calendar year and a minimum of two meetings per year on such dates and at such times 
and places as the Board shall determine. 

 
4.5. Voting.  A quorum shall consist of no less than fifty percent (50%) of board members or 

alternates eligible to vote.  Board actions shall be determined by a majority of the votes 
cast at the meeting.  Abstentions shall not be counted as votes cast for the purpose of 
this section.  Proxy votes are not permitted. 

 
4.6. By-Laws.  The Board may adopt bylaws to govern its operations.  Such bylaws shall be 

consistent with the Agreement and applicable law. 
 
4.7. Amendments.  This Agreement may be amended from time to time as deemed 

necessary.  Amendments require agreement of all Parties and must be provided to all 
Parties at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of the proposed amendment. 

 
4.8. Records, Accounts and Reports 
 

4.8.1. Records and Reports.  The books and records, including minutes and the original 
fully executed Agreement, of the Board shall be subject to the provisions of Minn. 
Statute Chapter 13.  They shall be maintained at Blue Earth County Human 
Services, 410 South Fifth Street, Mankato, Minnesota, 56002.  Blue Earth County 
will serve as the fiscal agent for grant funds received by the Immtrack.  Records, 
accounts and reports shall be maintained by the Secretary/Treasurer. 

 
4.8.2. Receipts and Disbursements.  The Immtrack will ensure strict accountability for 

all funds of the organization and will require reports on all receipts and 
disbursements made to, or on behalf of the Immtrack. 

 

Article 5 
Duties of the Board 

 
The Board shall formulate a plan to carry out its purposes pursuant to Article 2. 
 

Article 6 
Powers of the Board 

 
6.1. General Powers.  The Board is hereby authorized to exercise such authority and powers 

common to the Parties as is necessary and proper to fulfill its purposes and perform its 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 26 / 241



- 4 - 

duties.  Such authority shall include the specific powers enumerated in this Agreement 
or in the bylaws. 

 
6.2. Specific Powers. 
 

6.2.1. Contracts.  The Board may enter into contracts necessary for the exercise of its 
duties and responsibilities to govern the Immtrack.  The Board may take such 
action as is necessary to enforce such contracts to the extent available in equity 
or at law.  Contracts let and purchases made pursuant to this Agreement shall 
conform to the requirements applicable to contracts required by law (i.e., fiscal 
management, personnel management). 

 
6.2.2 Annual Budget.  The fiscal year of the Immtrack shall be the calendar year, 

January 1 through December 31.  An annual budget will be prepared and 
submitted to the Board by the fiscal agent annually, prior to January 1. 

 
6.2.3. Insurance.  The Board shall obtain liability, property and auto insurance and may 

obtain such other insurance it deems necessary to indemnify the Board and its 
members for actions of the Board and its members arising out of this Agreement. 

 

Article 7 
Indemnification and Hold Harmless 

 
7.1. Applicability.  The Immtrack shall be considered a separate and distinct public entity to 

which the Parties have transferred all responsibility and control for actions taken 
pursuant to this Agreement. Immtrack shall comply with all laws and rules that govern a 
public entity in the State of Minnesota and shall be entitled to the protections of 
M.S. 466. 

 
7.2. Indemnification and Hold Harmless.  The Immtrack shall fully defend, indemnify and 

hold harmless the Parties against all claims, losses, liability, suits, judgments, costs and 
expenses by reason of the action or inaction of the Board and/or employees and/or the 
agents of the Immtrack.  This Agreement to indemnify and hold harmless does not 
constitute a waiver by any participant of limitations on liability provided under Minnesota 
States Statutes, Section 466.04. 

 
To the full extent permitted by law, actions by the parties pursuant to this Agreement 
are intended to be and shall be construed as a “cooperative activity” and it is the intent 
of the parties that they shall be deemed a “single governmental unit” for the purposes of 
liability, all as set forth in Minnesota Statutes, Section 471.59, subd. 1a(a); provided 
further that for purposes of that statute, each party to this Agreement expressly declines 
responsibility for the acts or omissions of the other party. 

 
The Parties of this Agreement are not liable for the acts or omissions of the other 
participants to this Agreement except to the extent to which they have agreed in writing 
to be responsible for acts or omissions of the other Parties. 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 27 / 241



- 5 - 

Article 8 
Term 

 
This Agreement shall commence upon approval of the governing body of each Party and 
signature of the official with authority to bind the entity listed in Article l. 
 
The Agreement shall be in effect only with respect to the Parties who have approved and signed 
it. 

 

Article 9 
Withdrawal and Termination 

 
9.1. Withdrawal:  Any Party shall have the right to withdraw from this Agreement and the 

Immtrack created in the following manner: 
 
 The Party withdrawing shall pass a resolution declaring its intent to withdraw effective on 

a specified date, which date shall not be less than ninety (90) days from the day of the 
resolution, and shall send a certified copy of such resolution to the chairperson of the 
Immtrack Board not less than ninety (90) days before the effective date of withdrawal.   

 
 Upon receipt of the resolution of a withdrawal, the Chairperson shall, within ten (10) 

workdays, mail copies of the resolution to all Parties.  

 
9.2. When a Party exercises its option to withdraw under the terms of this Agreement, no 

fiscal liability shall accrue for the subsequent quarter unless the resolution declaring its 
withdrawal is sent later than the first day of the last month in the quarter, in which case, 
fiscal liability will be limited to that accruing within sixty (60) days of the notice declaring 
its withdrawal; and any payment in excess of this amount shall be refunded to the 
withdrawing Party immediately. 

 
 The withdrawing Party shall not be entitled to a refund of fees paid to the Immtrack 

Board prior to the effective date of withdrawal. 
 
 Notwithstanding a Party’s authority to withdraw, this Agreement and the Board created 

hereby shall continue in force until all non-withdrawing Parties mutually agree to 
terminate this Agreement. 

 
 The Parties continuing this Agreement and the Board created hereby shall indemnify, 

defend, and hold harmless any withdrawing Party who has withdrawn in accordance with 
the terms of this Agreement.   

 
 After the effective date of termination of this agreement by all Parties, the Immtrack 

Board shall continue to exist for the limited purpose of discharging the Immtrack’s debts 
and liabilities, settling its affairs, and disposing of its property and surplus monies, if any. 

 
9.3. Termination.  This Agreement shall start upon January 1, 2012, as amended January 1, 

2017, or upon the date of signature of the governing body and remain in force until 
December 31, 2016 and it shall terminate then unless continued for an additional term or 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 28 / 241



- 6 - 

terms by the written agreement of all Parties unless or until a party exercises its right 
of withdrawal.  

 
9.3.1 Effects of Termination.  Termination shall not discharge any liability incurred by 

the Board or by the Parties during the term of the Agreement. 
 

9.3.1A Financial obligations shall continue until discharged by law, this 
Agreement or any other agreement. 

 
9.3.1B In case of termination, all unused funds and surplus property held by 

the Immtrack Board shall be distributed in accordance with grantor 
agreement of the State of Minnesota or otherwise in proportion to the 
total population of the respective counties as reported by the most 
recent census.  Any distribution or unused fund or surplus property 
would go only to Parties who were members of the effective date of the 
termination of this Agreement. 

 

Article 10 
Counterparts 

 
This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be an 
original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument.   Counterparts shall be 
filed with Blue Earth County who will maintain them at 410 South 5th Street, Mankato, 
Minnesota, 56001. 

 
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 29 / 241



- 7 - 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by 
the persons authorized to act for their respective Parties on the date shown below. 
 
Each Party must complete the following.  An original of each Party’s execution of the 
Agreement should be attached to the Agreement and remain in a permanent file.  
 
Approved as to form and execution:  COUNTY OF _____________________ 
 
 
       By:        
County Attorney/Date          Chair of Board 
 
 
       Date of Signature:      
 
 
       Attest:       
                 Clerk of Board 
 
10-11 
N:/Contract/IMMTRACK JOINTPOWERS AGREEMENT.DOC(1-7) 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 30 / 241



 

 •COMMITTED TO THE PROVISION OF QUALITY SERVICES FOR INDIVIDUALS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS STATEWIDE• 

 

1550 Humboldt Ave • West St. Paul, MN 55118 • P: 651.450.1802 • F: 651.450.7923 • www.thomasalleninc.com 

 

December 7, 2017 

This is an agreement between Le Sueur County Public Health, 88 South Park Avenue, Le 

Center, MN 56057 (“County”) and Thomas Allen, 1550 Humboldt Avenue West, St. Paul, MN 

55118 (“Contractor”), for Contracted Case Management Services.  

The Contractor will act on behalf of the Contractor to provide waiver case management 

services to individuals assigned.   

Both the County and the Contractor will adhere to all terms and conditions of the 

Contractor’s Lead Agency Agreement with Ramsey County Human Services:  

CHS16 THOMAS ALLEN CM 19 (Exhibit A) 

relating to CADI, BI, and CAC waiver case management services.  

The exception to this agreement is the authorized unit rate for case management services, as 

outlined in Attachment A.  Both the County & Contractor agree to the following unit rates:  

Service     Program    Rate 

Case Management   CADI/CAC/BI waiver   State of MN max limit 

In addition, both the County & Contractor agree to abide by the “Designated Roles and 

Responsibilities with Contracted Case Management” document which is specific to Le Sueur 

County Public Health and Thomas Allen (Exhibit B). 

 

 

 

_________________________________________________ ________________ 

Cindy Shaughnessy, Le Sueur County Public Health  Director   Date 

 

_________________________________________________ ________________ 

Sandra Quinn, Thomas Allen Administrator      Date 

 88 South Park Avenue, Le Center, MN 56057 

 88 South Park Avenue, Le Center, MN 5605 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 31 / 241



 

 •COMMITTED TO THE PROVISION OF QUALITY SERVICES FOR INDIVIDUALS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS STATEWIDE• 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 32 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 33 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 34 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 35 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 36 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 37 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 38 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 39 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 40 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 41 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 42 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 43 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 44 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 45 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 46 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 47 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 48 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 49 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 50 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 51 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 52 / 241



 

Designated Roles and Responsibilities with Contracted Case Management 

 
Le Sueur County (LSC) Public 
Health  Case Manager (CM) 

Lead Agency responsible for 
assessment 

Thomas Allen Contracted Case Manager (CCM) 

 

1 
12/2017 

Communicate all pertinent 
information and pending services at 
the time of the referral to the CCM: 
Universal transfer form: DHS 6037 
Attach the following: 
CSP/CSSP/CSP worksheet (6791A) 
CAC/BI physician documentation 
DHS-6791D 
DHS-2727 
Assessment report 
OBRA I 
Eligibility summary 
PCA provider report (if applicable) 
Planning summary 
DHS-3543 if needed 
DHS 2828A  
Guardianship documentation 
Current signed ROI 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

CCM to keep a hard file and if audits or further info is needed it can be 
requested.   

 Complete MnCHOICES assessment  
 
Complete CSP in MnSP 
 
Complete and send  CCM 
DHS-6791B 
DHS-2727 
Assessment report 
OBRA I 
Eligibility summary 
PCA provider report 
Planning summary 
DHS-3543 if needed 
DHS 2828 

Make referral to Lead Agency responsible for MnCHOICES assessment 
via MICP (ex. annual reassessment, change in condition, relocation 
service coordination) within appropriate timeframe using DHS 6791E.  
Copy LSC CM and LSC CA to this notification.  No need to notify LSC CM 
of change in condition assessment.  Refer to MICP (MnCHOICES 
Interagency Contact Point) list, reassessment rollout checklist, 
reassessment rollout guidance document, reassessment roll out FAQs, 
via county link: 
http://www.dhs.state.mn.us/main/idcplg?IdcService=GET_DYNAMIC_C
ONVERSION&RevisionSelectionMethod=LatestReleased&dDocName=D
HS-289284 
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 53 / 241

http://www.dhs.state.mn.us/main/idcplg?IdcService=GET_DYNAMIC_CONVERSION&RevisionSelectionMethod=LatestReleased&dDocName=DHS-289284
http://www.dhs.state.mn.us/main/idcplg?IdcService=GET_DYNAMIC_CONVERSION&RevisionSelectionMethod=LatestReleased&dDocName=DHS-289284
http://www.dhs.state.mn.us/main/idcplg?IdcService=GET_DYNAMIC_CONVERSION&RevisionSelectionMethod=LatestReleased&dDocName=DHS-289284


 

Designated Roles and Responsibilities with Contracted Case Management 

 
Le Sueur County (LSC) Public 
Health  Case Manager (CM) 

Lead Agency responsible for 
assessment 

Thomas Allen Contracted Case Manager (CCM) 

 

2 
12/2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enter SA upon receipt of email from 
CCM that CSSP is complete.  Email 
CCM back when complete.   

 Complete at a minimum of 2 face to face visits/year; visit client during 
last month of SA, attend team meeting when possible.  CM travel time 
is billable for the BI waiver.   
 
Obtain annual signatures: Thomas Allen ROI and Le Sueur County ROI 
 
Complete CSSP in MnSP: include 200 units CM for CCM at State max 
limit, 24 units of CM for LSC at State max limit, 12 units CA for LSC at 
State max limit, enter RMS worksheets, review, and approve rates and 
CSSP, obtains all signatures for DHS 6791D: CSSP Signature Sheet 
 
Send email to LSC CM and LSC CA that CSSP is complete in MnSP and 
SA can be entered.     
 
Complete LTSS Evaluations in MnSP at 6 month visit  

Review waiver resource/change 
request and submit to LSC waiver 
supervisor (WMS admin).  Once 
approved send to CCM.    
 
 
 
 
Upon email that CSSP has been 
entered and approved adjust SA and 
let CCM know that SA has been 
adjusted.    

 When requesting a service change, complete LSC waiver resource 
allocation/change request and submit to LSC.   
LSC guidelines: when over $500/one time use and when there is an 
increase or decrease of $100/day.   
 
Upon receipt of approval of waiver resource/change request from LSC 
CM enter in CSSP, approve, and send email with SA number to LSC CM 
and LSC CA to adjust SA.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 54 / 241



 

Designated Roles and Responsibilities with Contracted Case Management 

 
Le Sueur County (LSC) Public 
Health  Case Manager (CM) 

Lead Agency responsible for 
assessment 

Thomas Allen Contracted Case Manager (CCM) 

 

3 
12/2017 

  Track waiver date spans & notify Lead Agency responsible for 
assessment no later than 20th day of 4th month before the person’s SA 
end date. 
 
Monitor changes in financial eligibility (MA) & communicate this to the 
LSC CM and/or lead agency responsible for assessment.    
 
Ensure person has informed choice, make referrals, monitor & 
coordinate authorized services 
 
Utilize person centered principles in all aspects of case management 
services 
 
Monitor and ensure DHS policy compliance 
 
Collect, review and file provider reports 

Adjust SA as necessary.  Leave SA 
header dates open for 30 days but 
close line items as of day of 
admission.   

 Notify LSC CM and LSC CA when there is an out of community 
placement (ex. hospitalization, nursing home, etc.) via email or phone 
call.   

  Complete DHS 3936 – My Move Plan Summary if the person is 
interested in moving or is planning a move.  Notify LSC CM and LSC CA 
of new address for the person. 

Communicate/collaborate with CCM 
for NOA 2828B  
 
Communicate and collaborate with 
CCM re: need for guardianship  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Complete NOA 2828B and update LSC CM and LSC CA: 
communicate/collaborate with LSC CM 
 
Communicate and collaborate with LSC CM re: need for guardianship 
 
 
 
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 55 / 241



 

Designated Roles and Responsibilities with Contracted Case Management 

 
Le Sueur County (LSC) Public 
Health  Case Manager (CM) 

Lead Agency responsible for 
assessment 

Thomas Allen Contracted Case Manager (CCM) 

 

4 
12/2017 

Financial Unit: communicate with 
CCM re: financial.  Use DHS 5181 as 
needed.   

Monitor and communicate to the county of residence financial unit (as 
they service the financial case for LSC CFR if the CFR and COR are 
different).  Use DHS 5181 as needed.  

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 56 / 241



12/5/17 

Re: Letter of Intent for EBFHV Grant Due January 12, 2018 

To whom this may concern, 

Human Services of Faribault & Martin Counties intends to apply for an implementation expansion 
grant aimed at expanding their current Healthy Families America Program to include more staff 
capacity within the two counties, as well as expanding the program geographically to include 
neighboring counties interested in establishing HFA programs.  Partnering with Human Services of 
Faribault & Martin Counties are the following counties: Brown, Nicollet, Le Sueur, Waseca and 
Watonwan, which makes up a geographical area in South Central Minnesota. Last year (2016) there 
was 1,723 births within our six-county area. At full capacity, we expect our target caseload to include 
90 families.   

Below is the contact information for the applicant and partners: 

Human Services of Faribault & Martin Counties:  

Chera Sevcik 
Community Health Manager 
115 W 1st Street  
Fairmont, MN 56031 
507-238-4757 
chera.sevcik@fmchs.com  
 

Brown County: 

Karen Moritz 
Brown County Public Health Director 
1117 Center Street, New Ulm, MN 56073 
507-233-6809 
Karen.moritz@co.brown.mn 
 

Nicollet County: 

Mary Hildebrandt, PHN 
Nicollet County Public Health Director 
622 South Front Street 
St. Peter, MN  56082 
507-934-7220 
mary.hildebrandt@co.nicollet.mn.us  
 

Le Sueur County: 

Cindy Shaughnessy, PHN 
Le Sueur County Public Health Director 
88 South Park Avenue 
Le Center, MN 56057 
507-357-8246 
cshaughnessy@co.le-sueur.mn.us  
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 57 / 241

mailto:chera.sevcik@fmchs.com
mailto:Karen.moritz@co.brown.mn
mailto:mary.hildebrandt@co.nicollet.mn.us
mailto:cshaughnessy@co.le-sueur.mn.us


Waseca County: 

Sarah Berry, REHS 
Waseca County Public Health Director 
Le Sueur – Waseca Community Health Services Administrator 
299 Johnson Ave NW, Ste. 160 
Waseca, MN 56093 
507-835-0656 
sarah.berry@co.waseca.mn.us  

 

Watonwan County:  

Julia Putz 
Community Health Services Manager 
715 2nd Avenue South 
St. James, MN 56081 
507-375-7863 
Julia.putz@co.watonwan.mn.us  

  

Sincerely, 

Chera Sevcik 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 58 / 241

mailto:sarah.berry@co.waseca.mn.us
mailto:Julia.putz@co.watonwan.mn.us


Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 12, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 7

9:50 a.m. Tyler Luethje, Parks Director (10 min)

RE: Master Plan for Lake Washington County Park

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 59 / 241



        Parks Department
             88 South Park Avenue        Le Center, MN 56057

            Office: 507-357-8201         Fax: 507-357-4520

County Board Agenda – December 12, 2017

Approve ISG Proposal for Lake Washington Regional Park Master Plan

Lake Washington County Park was granted Regional Park status in 2015 by the Greater 
Minnesota Regional Parks and Trails Commission.  There are currently 48 regionally designated 
parks or trails within Greater Minnesota that can apply for funding through the Parks & Trails 
Legacy Fund. 

The Parks & Trails Legacy Fund was established in 2008 as part of the 25 year Clean Water, Land 
and Legacy Amendment. In 2017, the Greater Minnesota Regional Parks and Trails Commission 
received 25 funding applications and awarded 12 Regional Parks a combined total of 
$8,298,810.  

The funding deadline for FY2019 is July 31, 2018.  To achieve the highest ranking in the funding 
application, projects need to be ready to move forward immediately.  Therefore, I would like 
the Commissioners approval to accept the ISG Proposal for Lake Washington Regional Park 
Master Plan Update.  Updating the Master Plan and using ISG’s professional services will allow 
us to gain public feedback through an open house, put together a Park Plan, and allow us the 
greatest chance to be awarded funding for FY2019 and all future years towards the 
development and expansion of Lake Washington County Regional Park. 

Tyler Luethje
Le Sueur County Parks Director

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 60 / 241



7900 International Drive + Suite 550 + Minneapolis, MN 55425
952.426.0699 + www.is-grp.com

RE:  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PROPOSAL FOR LAKE    
 WASHINGTON  REGIONAL PARK MASTER PLAN UPDATE
 LE SUEUR COUNTY, MINNESOTA

Tyler

Lake Washington Regional Park recently received regional designation status by 
the Greater Minnesota Park and Trail Commission, which makes the Park eligible 
for funding through the statewide Legacy Act sales tax. With new ideas for Park 
development, Le Sueur County plans to revisit the existing Park Master Plan in 
preparation for 2019 Legacy funding grant submission. With previous success 
drafting reports for Legacy funding and an intimate understanding of the Park and 
region, ISG stands eager to assist in revising the Parks Master Plan to build upon 
the amenities Lake Washington Regional Park offers.

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING  
ISG drafted the current Lake Washington Regional Park Master Plan in 2015. 
With new faces and ideas at the table, the County wants to take a critical look at 
the Plan, assessing what has already been completed and analyzing regional needs. 
ISG proposes a phased approach with the following scope of services.

Phase 1: Stakeholder Engagement + Plan Development 

Stakeholder Visioning Session  
ISG will meet with the Parks Board, 
County staff, and select stakeholders at 
the Park or another preferred venue to:

• Review any current challenges.

• Review past or future development 
or planning projects that may 
impact improvements.

• Identify opportunities as they relate 
to site improvements and/or events that could take place at the Park if 
appropriate amenities or features were added.

Preliminary Concept Development  
ISG will summarize and organize all input received from the visioning session in 
both written and graphical format. Two (2) preliminary concepts to accommodate 
the various improvements within the overall Park Plan would then be developed 
based on this information, and submitted to County staff for review.

Concept Review  
ISG will host a public open house in conjunction with a Park Board meeting to 
solicit feedback on the concepts. 

Preferred Plan Development  
ISG will develop a preferred plan by refining the conceptual plans based on 
feedback received during the review session. We will also provide a corresponding 
cost estimate update and outline steps for implementation, including identifying 
short- and long-tern priorities. ISG will share the preferred plan and accept 
feedback at a second public open house and Park Board meeting.

150+
MN-BASED 
EMPLOYEES

40+
YEARS IN 
BUSINESS

November 17, 2017

Tyler Luethje
Parks Director
Le Sueur County
88 South Park Avenue
Le Center, MN 56057
507.357.8201
tluethje@co.le.sueur.mn.us

ZWEIG 
GROUP
HOT FIRM  
LIST FOR 2017

TOP 500
2017 ENR FIRM

PHASE 1 DELIVERABLES 
One (1) hard copy of the  

graphics and boards 

Electronic copy of all documents

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 61 / 241



7900 International Drive + Suite 550 + Minneapolis, MN 55425
952.426.0699 + www.is-grp.com

Final Plan  
ISG will meet with identified project stakeholders to present the preferred 
plan. ISG will  then prepare any final adjustments to the plan, estimate, and 
implementation steps based on final comments by stakeholders. An electronic 
copy of all graphics and documents will be provided to the County.

Phase 2: Master Plan Report Updates

ISG will work closely with Le Sueur 
County to update the previously 
prepared Park Master Plan as required 
to support funding applications for the 
upcoming grant cycle. ISG anticipates 
providing updates to previously prepared 
maps, aerial maps, site plans, and related 
cost estimates to support the grant 
application. Updated plan graphics 
developed during the master planning 
process will also be integrated into the document.

Various sections will also be updated to address recently completed community 
engagement and input, potential trends, current goals, priorities, and a preliminary 
future vision for the Park. The Plan will also list agencies and interest groups 
that have contributed to the success of the park, and identify long-term or 
new partnership opportunities. A marketing plan that provides a framework 
of engagement strategies for marketing the park and potentially constructed 
improvements will be included. Flexibility will be integrated allowing these sections 
to expand and become further developed in the future.

It is ISG’s understanding that the County will provide all existing survey data, 
imagery, as-built drawings, etc., to aid in the development of the Master Plan 
update.

COMPENSATION + SCHEDULE  
ISG proposes to provide the scope of services described within this proposal for 
compensation in accordance with the schedule below. Anticipated reimbursable 
expenses such as travel time, mileage expense, printing costs, etc. are included. 
Upon request, ISG will host/attend additional engagement or coordination 
meetings at a cost of $700 per meeting.

PHASE 2 DELIVERABLES 
Two (2) hard copy bound reports in 

8.5” x 11” format

Electronic copy of final report

SERVICE COMPENSATION

Phase 1 
JANUARY - MAY 

 2018

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT + PLAN DEVELOPMENT $14,700

Stakeholder Visioning Session $900

Preliminary Concepts Development $7,700

Concept Review $700

Preferred Plan Development $3,800

Final Plan $1,600

Phase 2 
MAY - JUNE 

2018
MASTER PLAN REPORT UPDATES $7,800

TOTAL $22,500

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 62 / 241



7900 International Drive + Suite 550 + Minneapolis, MN 55425
952.426.0699 + www.is-grp.com

ADDITIONAL SERVICES
Our goal for this proposal, like our services, is to be flexible to accommodate the 
requirements of your project. At your request ISG is able to provide a subsequent 
proposal to assist with grant application or the necessary professional design 
services, bid administration, and construction phase services to implement the Park 
Master Plan as projects move forward.

Thank you for the opportunity to continue working with your team to enhance the 
outdoor opportunities offered at Lake Washington Regional Park. Upon acceptance 
of this proposal, please sign the acknowledgment box below and return a copy 
to our office. We look forward to providing responsive service, a collaborative 
approach, and timely delivery in support of Lake Washington Regional Park.

Sincerely,

Amanda Prosser PLA, ASLA, CPSI

Project Manager + Senior Landscape Architect

This proposal is valid for 30 days. 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF ACCEPTANCE 

Accepted this _____ day of ________________, 2017 

F or:  

B y:  

T itle:  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 63 / 241



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 12, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 8

10:00 a.m. CIP Public Hearing (10 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 64 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 65 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 66 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 67 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 68 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 69 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 70 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 71 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 72 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 73 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 74 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 75 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 76 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 77 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 78 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 79 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 80 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 81 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 82 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 83 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 84 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 85 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 86 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 87 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 88 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 89 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 90 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 91 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 92 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 93 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 94 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 95 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 96 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 97 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 98 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 99 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 100 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 101 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 102 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 103 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 104 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 105 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 106 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 107 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 108 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 109 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 110 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 111 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 112 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 113 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 114 / 241



 

 

 

 
December 12, 2017 

 
Pre-Sale Report for 
 
Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
 
$4,950,000 General Obligation Jail Bonds, Series 2018A 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Prepared by: 

 

 

Bruce Kimmel, CIPMA 

Senior Municipal Advisor 

 

And 

 

Todd Hagen, CIPMA 

Senior Municipal Advisor 

 

And 

 

Chris Mickelson, 

Financial Specialist 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 115 / 241



 

 
  

Presale Report  
Le Sueur County, Minnesota 

December 12, 2017 
Page 1 

 

Executive Summary of Proposed Debt 
 

Proposed Issue: $4,950,000 General Obligation Jail Bonds, Series 2018A 

Purposes: The proposed issue includes financing to fund a portion of costs associated with 

construction of the jail and law enforcement center (LEC) components of a new 

justice center, utilizing general obligation (G.O.) bonds to be paid from ad valorem 

property taxes.  The County issued $7.22 million in G.O. jail bonds in July 2017 

and anticipates issuing approximately $5 million of G.O. jail bonds in 2019 to fund 

the remaining jail and LEC component costs of the justice center. 

Authority: The Bonds are being issued pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 475 and 641. 

The Bonds will be general obligations of the County for which its full faith, credit 

and taxing powers are pledged.   

Minnesota Statute Chapter 641 allows for the issuance of G.O. jail bonds without 

referendum if the total principal and interest for all jail bonds issued in any year 

does not exceed 0.09671% of estimated taxable market value within the County. 

Including this Bond issue, the County has over $3,025,000 remaining in its annual 

jail debt service capacity.    

The Bonds count against the County’s overall debt limit for tax-supported debt, in 

which outstanding principal is limited to 3% of the County’s estimated market 

value. Including this Bond issue (and also the estimated Series 2018B issue), the 

County has approximately $91,000,000 in remaining debt capacity for tax-

supported debt. 

Term/Call Feature: The Bonds are being issued for a 21-year term.  Principal on the Bonds will be due 

on February 1 in the years 2020 through 2039. Interest is payable every six months 

beginning February 1, 2019. 

The Bonds maturing on and after February 1, 2029 will be subject to prepayment 

at the discretion of the County on February 1, 2028 or any date thereafter. 

Bank Qualification: Because the County is expecting to issue no more than $10,000,000 in tax exempt 

debt during the calendar year, the County will be able to designate the Bonds as 

“bank qualified” obligations.  Bank qualified status broadens the market for the 

Bonds, which can result in lower interest rates. 

State Credit 
Enhancement: 

County bond issues for certain facilities, including jails, are authorized to receive 

credit enhancement from the State, meaning a guarantee to investors that the State 

will pay debt service if the County somehow fails to do so.  Even though the 

County’s Standard & Poor's AA rating is only one notch below the State’s AA+ 

rating, Ehlers has found that investors appreciate the added security of credit 

enhanced bonds.  To qualify for the credit enhancement, the County must pass a 

resolution of application, and then submit an application and $500 fee to the State. 

Ehlers will coordinate the State application process on the County’s behalf. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 116 / 241



 

 
  

Presale Report  
Le Sueur County, Minnesota 

December 12, 2017 
Page 2 

 

Rating: The County will utilize the State of Minnesota’s bond rating (Standard & Poor’s 

AA+) through participating in the State credit enhancement program. 

The County’s most recent bond issue was rated AA by Standard & Poor’s.  The 

County will request a new rating for this issuance. 

Basis for 
Recommendation: 

Based on our knowledge of your situation, your objectives communicated to us, 

our advisory relationship as well as characteristics of various municipal financing 

options, we are recommending the issuance of general obligation jail bonds as a 

suitable financing option because: 

 

- Bank qualified G.O. bonds utilizing a competitive sale process with state 

credit enhancement provides the lowest possible interest cost; and, 

- This is the most overall cost effective option that still maintains future 

flexibility for the early prepayment of debt. 

Method of 
Sale/Placement: 

In order to obtain the lowest interest cost to the County, we will competitively bid 

the purchase of the Bonds from local and national underwriters/banks. 

We have included an allowance for discount bidding equal to 1.00% of the 

principal amount of the issue. The discount is treated as an interest item and 

provides the underwriter with all or a portion of their compensation in the 

transaction. If the Bonds are purchased at a price greater than the minimum bid 

amount (maximum discount), the unused allowance may be used to lower the 

County’s borrowing amount. 

Under current market conditions, most investors in municipal bonds prefer 

“premium” pricing structures.  A premium is achieved when the coupon for any 

maturity (the interest rate paid by the issuer) exceeds the yield to the investor, 

resulting in a price paid that is greater than the face value of the bonds.  The sum 

of the amounts paid in excess of face value is considered “reoffering premium.” 

The amount of the premium varies, but it is not uncommon to see premiums for 

new issues in the range of 2.00% to 10.00% of the face amount of the issue. This 

means that an issuer with a $2,000,000 offering may receive bids that result in 

proceeds of $2,040,000 to $2,200,000.   

For this Bond issuance, it is to be determined if any premium received will reduce 

the size of the issue or increase the net proceeds of the project. The adjustments 

may slightly change the true interest cost of the original bid, either up or down. 

Review of Existing Debt: We have reviewed all outstanding indebtedness for the County and find that 

refunding opportunities exist for the Series 2006A, 2007A and 2008A issues. 

These refunding opportunities are included in the proposed Series 2018B bond 

issue.  

We will continue to monitor the market and the call dates for the County’s 

outstanding debt and will alert you to any additional future refunding 

opportunities. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 117 / 241



 

 
  

Presale Report  
Le Sueur County, Minnesota 

December 12, 2017 
Page 3 

 

Continuing Disclosure: Because the County has more than $10,000,000 in outstanding debt (including this 

issue) and this issue is over $1,000,000, the County will be agreeing to provide 

certain updated Annual Financial Information and its Audited Financial Statement 

annually as well as providing notices of the occurrence of certain reportable events 

to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”), as required by rules 

of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).  The County is already 

obligated to provide such reports for its existing bonds, and has contracted with 

Ehlers to prepare and file the reports.   

Arbitrage Monitoring: 
 

 

Because the Bonds are tax-exempt securities, the County must ensure compliance 

with certain Internal Revenue Service (IRS) rules throughout the life of the issue.  

These rules apply to all gross proceeds of the issue, including initial bond proceeds 

and investment earnings in construction, escrow, debt service, and any reserve 

funds.  How issuers spend bond proceeds and how they track interest earnings on 

funds (arbitrage/yield restriction compliance) are common subjects of IRS 

inquiries.  Your specific responsibilities will be detailed in the Tax Certificate 

prepared by your Bond Attorney and provided at closing.  You have retained Ehlers 

to assist you with compliance with these rules. 

Other Service Providers: 
This debt issuance will require the engagement of other public finance service 

providers.  This section identifies those other service providers, so Ehlers can 

coordinate their engagement on your behalf.  Where you have previously used a 

particular firm to provide a service, we have assumed that you will continue that 

relationship.  For services you have not previously required, we have identified a 

service provider.  Fees charged by these service providers will be paid from 

proceeds of the obligation, unless you notify us that you wish to pay them from 

other sources.  Our pre-sale bond sizing includes a good faith estimate of these 

fees, so their final fees may vary.  If you have any questions pertaining to the 

identified service providers or their role, or if you would like to use a different 

service provider for any of the listed services please contact us. 

Bond Attorney: Dorsey & Whitney LLP 

Paying Agent: Bond Trust Services Corporation 

Rating Agency: Standard & Poor's Global Ratings (S&P)  

 

This presale report summarizes our understanding of the County’s objectives for the structure and terms of this 

financing as of this date.  As additional facts become known or capital markets conditions change, we may need 

to modify the structure and/or terms of this financing to achieve results consistent with the County’s objectives. 

  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 118 / 241



 

 
  

Presale Report  
Le Sueur County, Minnesota 

December 12, 2017 
Page 4 

 

Proposed Debt Issuance Schedule 
 

Pre-Sale Review by Board of Commissioners: December 12, 2017 

Distribute Official Statement: Week of December 18, 2017 

Conference with Rating Agency: Week of January 1, 2018 

County Board Meeting to Award Sale of the Bonds: January 16, 2018 

Estimated Closing Date: February 15, 2018  

 

Attachments 

Sources and Uses of Funds 

Proposed Debt Service Schedule 

Resolution Authorizing Ehlers to Proceed with Bond Sale 

Resolution Authorizing Ehlers to Proceed with State Credit Enhancement 

 

 

Ehlers Contacts 

Municipal Advisors: Bruce Kimmel (651) 697-8572 

 Todd Hagen (651) 697-8508 

 Chris Mickelson (651) 697-8556 

Disclosure Coordinator: Jen Chapman (651) 697-8566 

Financial Analyst: Alicia Gage (651) 697-8551 

 

 

The Official Statement for this financing will be mailed or e-mailed to the Board of Commissioners for their 

review prior to the sale date. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 119 / 241



 

    

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$4,950,000 General Obligation Jail Bonds, Series 2018A 

Assumes Current Market BQ "AA+" Credit Enhanced Market Rates +20bps 

Sources & Uses 

 Dated 02/15/2018 |  Delivered 02/15/2018

Sources Of Funds 
Par Amount of Bonds $4,950,000.00

 
Total Sources $4,950,000.00

 
Uses Of Funds 
Total Underwriter's Discount  (1.000%) 49,500.00

Costs of Issuance 39,000.00

Deposit to Capitalized Interest (CIF) Fund 124,238.03

Deposit to Project Construction Fund 4,735,000.00

Rounding Amount 2,261.97

 
Total Uses $4,950,000.00

Series 2018A GO Jail Bond  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  12/ 7/2017  |  1:35 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 120 / 241



 

    

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$4,950,000 General Obligation Jail Bonds, Series 2018A 

Assumes Current Market BQ "AA+" Credit Enhanced Market Rates +20bps 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total

02/15/2018 - - - - -

02/01/2019 - - 124,238.03 124,238.03 124,238.03

08/01/2019 - - 64,632.50 64,632.50 -

02/01/2020 200,000.00 1.500% 64,632.50 264,632.50 329,265.00

08/01/2020 - - 63,132.50 63,132.50 -

02/01/2021 205,000.00 1.600% 63,132.50 268,132.50 331,265.00

08/01/2021 - - 61,492.50 61,492.50 -

02/01/2022 205,000.00 1.700% 61,492.50 266,492.50 327,985.00

08/01/2022 - - 59,750.00 59,750.00 -

02/01/2023 210,000.00 1.800% 59,750.00 269,750.00 329,500.00

08/01/2023 - - 57,860.00 57,860.00 -

02/01/2024 215,000.00 1.950% 57,860.00 272,860.00 330,720.00

08/01/2024 - - 55,763.75 55,763.75 -

02/01/2025 220,000.00 2.050% 55,763.75 275,763.75 331,527.50

08/01/2025 - - 53,508.75 53,508.75 -

02/01/2026 220,000.00 2.150% 53,508.75 273,508.75 327,017.50

08/01/2026 - - 51,143.75 51,143.75 -

02/01/2027 225,000.00 2.250% 51,143.75 276,143.75 327,287.50

08/01/2027 - - 48,612.50 48,612.50 -

02/01/2028 230,000.00 2.400% 48,612.50 278,612.50 327,225.00

08/01/2028 - - 45,852.50 45,852.50 -

02/01/2029 235,000.00 2.500% 45,852.50 280,852.50 326,705.00

08/01/2029 - - 42,915.00 42,915.00 -

02/01/2030 245,000.00 2.600% 42,915.00 287,915.00 330,830.00

08/01/2030 - - 39,730.00 39,730.00 -

02/01/2031 250,000.00 2.750% 39,730.00 289,730.00 329,460.00

08/01/2031 - - 36,292.50 36,292.50 -

02/01/2032 255,000.00 2.850% 36,292.50 291,292.50 327,585.00

08/01/2032 - - 32,658.75 32,658.75 -

02/01/2033 265,000.00 2.950% 32,658.75 297,658.75 330,317.50

08/01/2033 - - 28,750.00 28,750.00 -

02/01/2034 270,000.00 3.050% 28,750.00 298,750.00 327,500.00

08/01/2034 - - 24,632.50 24,632.50 -

02/01/2035 280,000.00 3.150% 24,632.50 304,632.50 329,265.00

08/01/2035 - - 20,222.50 20,222.50 -

02/01/2036 290,000.00 3.200% 20,222.50 310,222.50 330,445.00

08/01/2036 - - 15,582.50 15,582.50 -

02/01/2037 300,000.00 3.300% 15,582.50 315,582.50 331,165.00

08/01/2037 - - 10,632.50 10,632.50 -

02/01/2038 310,000.00 3.350% 10,632.50 320,632.50 331,265.00

08/01/2038 - - 5,440.00 5,440.00 -

02/01/2039 320,000.00 3.400% 5,440.00 325,440.00 330,880.00

Total $4,950,000.00 - $1,761,448.03 $6,711,448.03 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $60,847.50

Average Life 12.292 Years

Average Coupon 2.8948569%

 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.9762078%

True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.9612990%

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 2.8613779%

All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 3.0410112%

 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 2.8948569%

Weighted Average Maturity 12.292 Years

Series 2018A GO Jail Bond  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  12/ 7/2017  |  1:35 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 121 / 241



 

    

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$4,950,000 General Obligation Jail Bonds, Series 2018A 

Assumes Current Market BQ "AA+" Credit Enhanced Market Rates +20bps 

Net Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I CIF Net New D/S

Fiscal 

Total

02/15/2018 - - - - - - -

02/01/2019 - - 124,238.03 124,238.03 (124,238.03) - -

08/01/2019 - - 64,632.50 64,632.50 - 64,632.50 -

02/01/2020 200,000.00 1.500% 64,632.50 264,632.50 - 264,632.50 329,265.00

08/01/2020 - - 63,132.50 63,132.50 - 63,132.50 -

02/01/2021 205,000.00 1.600% 63,132.50 268,132.50 - 268,132.50 331,265.00

08/01/2021 - - 61,492.50 61,492.50 - 61,492.50 -

02/01/2022 205,000.00 1.700% 61,492.50 266,492.50 - 266,492.50 327,985.00

08/01/2022 - - 59,750.00 59,750.00 - 59,750.00 -

02/01/2023 210,000.00 1.800% 59,750.00 269,750.00 - 269,750.00 329,500.00

08/01/2023 - - 57,860.00 57,860.00 - 57,860.00 -

02/01/2024 215,000.00 1.950% 57,860.00 272,860.00 - 272,860.00 330,720.00

08/01/2024 - - 55,763.75 55,763.75 - 55,763.75 -

02/01/2025 220,000.00 2.050% 55,763.75 275,763.75 - 275,763.75 331,527.50

08/01/2025 - - 53,508.75 53,508.75 - 53,508.75 -

02/01/2026 220,000.00 2.150% 53,508.75 273,508.75 - 273,508.75 327,017.50

08/01/2026 - - 51,143.75 51,143.75 - 51,143.75 -

02/01/2027 225,000.00 2.250% 51,143.75 276,143.75 - 276,143.75 327,287.50

08/01/2027 - - 48,612.50 48,612.50 - 48,612.50 -

02/01/2028 230,000.00 2.400% 48,612.50 278,612.50 - 278,612.50 327,225.00

08/01/2028 - - 45,852.50 45,852.50 - 45,852.50 -

02/01/2029 235,000.00 2.500% 45,852.50 280,852.50 - 280,852.50 326,705.00

08/01/2029 - - 42,915.00 42,915.00 - 42,915.00 -

02/01/2030 245,000.00 2.600% 42,915.00 287,915.00 - 287,915.00 330,830.00

08/01/2030 - - 39,730.00 39,730.00 - 39,730.00 -

02/01/2031 250,000.00 2.750% 39,730.00 289,730.00 - 289,730.00 329,460.00

08/01/2031 - - 36,292.50 36,292.50 - 36,292.50 -

02/01/2032 255,000.00 2.850% 36,292.50 291,292.50 - 291,292.50 327,585.00

08/01/2032 - - 32,658.75 32,658.75 - 32,658.75 -

02/01/2033 265,000.00 2.950% 32,658.75 297,658.75 - 297,658.75 330,317.50

08/01/2033 - - 28,750.00 28,750.00 - 28,750.00 -

02/01/2034 270,000.00 3.050% 28,750.00 298,750.00 - 298,750.00 327,500.00

08/01/2034 - - 24,632.50 24,632.50 - 24,632.50 -

02/01/2035 280,000.00 3.150% 24,632.50 304,632.50 - 304,632.50 329,265.00

08/01/2035 - - 20,222.50 20,222.50 - 20,222.50 -

02/01/2036 290,000.00 3.200% 20,222.50 310,222.50 - 310,222.50 330,445.00

08/01/2036 - - 15,582.50 15,582.50 - 15,582.50 -

02/01/2037 300,000.00 3.300% 15,582.50 315,582.50 - 315,582.50 331,165.00

08/01/2037 - - 10,632.50 10,632.50 - 10,632.50 -

02/01/2038 310,000.00 3.350% 10,632.50 320,632.50 - 320,632.50 331,265.00

08/01/2038 - - 5,440.00 5,440.00 - 5,440.00 -

02/01/2039 320,000.00 3.400% 5,440.00 325,440.00 - 325,440.00 330,880.00

Total $4,950,000.00 - $1,761,448.03 $6,711,448.03 (124,238.03) $6,587,210.00 -

Series 2018A GO Jail Bond  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  12/ 7/2017  |  1:35 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 122 / 241



Resolution No.  _______________

Commissioner _________________ introduced the following resolution and moved its adoption:

Resolution Providing for the Sale of
$4,950,000 General Obligation Jail Bonds, Series 2018A

A. WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Le Sueur County, Minnesota has heretofore determined 
that it is necessary and expedient to issue the County's $4,950,000 General Obligation Jail Bonds, 
Series 2018A (the "Bonds"), to finance a portion of the costs associated with construction of a new 
County Jail facility; and

B. WHEREAS, the County has retained Ehlers & Associates, Inc., in Roseville, Minnesota ("Ehlers"), as 
its independent municipal advisor for the Bonds in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 
475.60, Subdivision 2(9);

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Le Sueur County, 
Minnesota, as follows:

1. Authorization.  The Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes Ehlers to assist the County for the 
sale of the Bonds.

2. Meeting; Proposal Opening.  The Board of Commissioners shall meet at 11:45 a.m. on January 16, 
2018, for the purpose of considering proposals for and awarding the sale of the Bonds.

3. Official Statement.  In connection with said sale, the officers or employees of the County are hereby 
authorized to cooperate with Ehlers and participate in the preparation of an official statement for the 
Bonds and to execute and deliver it on behalf of the County upon its completion.

The motion for the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly seconded by Commissioner 
_______________________ and, after full discussion thereof and upon a vote being taken thereon, the 
following Commissioners voted in favor thereof:

and the following voted against the same:

Whereupon said resolution was declared duly passed and adopted.

Dated this 12th day of December, 2017.

_____________________________________________
County Administrator

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 123 / 241



Resolution No.  _______________

Commissioner _________________ introduced the following resolution and moved its adoption:

Resolution Authorizing the County to Enter into a Credit Enhancement 
Program Agreement with the Minnesota Public Facilities Authority

A. WHEREAS, the County Board of Le Sueur County, Minnesota (the "County") proposes to issue its 
General Obligation Jail Bonds, Series 2018A (the "Bonds"), the proceeds of which will be used to 
finance a portion of the construction of a new County Jail facility; and

B. WHEREAS, the County Board hereby determines it is in the best interest of the County to apply to 
the Minnesota Public Facilities Authority (the "Authority") for credit enhancement of the Bonds;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the County Board of Le Sueur County, Minnesota, as 
follows:

1. Approval of the Authority's Credit Enhancement Program Agreement.   The Authority's Credit 
Enhancement Program Agreement (the "Agreement") is hereby approved, the same being before the 
County Board and made a part of this resolution by reference.

2. Authorization to Sign Agreement and Related Forms.  The County Board Chair and the County 
Administrator are authorized to sign the Agreement on the County's behalf and to execute any other 
related forms prescribed by the Authority with respect to the Agreement.

3. Agreement to Comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section 446A.086.  The County is entering into the 
Agreement with the Authority pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 446A.086 (the "Act") and the 
County hereby agrees to comply with and be bound by the provisions of the Act.

4. Submission of the Agreement.  The County Board Chair and County Administrator are hereby 
authorized to submit, on the County's behalf, the Agreement to the Authority, together with the 
nonrefundable application fee in the amount of $500.

The motion for the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly seconded by Commissioner 
_______________________ and, after full discussion thereof and upon a vote being taken thereon, the 
following Commissioners voted in favor thereof:

and the following voted against the same:

Whereupon said resolution was declared duly passed and adopted.

Dated this 12th day of December, 2017.

_____________________________________________
County Administrator

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 124 / 241



 

 

 

 
December 12, 2017 

 
Pre-Sale Report for 
 
Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
 
$9,255,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018B 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Prepared by: 

 

Bruce Kimmel, CIPMA 

Senior Municipal Advisor 

 

And 

 

Todd Hagen, CIPMA 

Senior Municipal Advisor 

 

And 

 

Chris Mickelson 

Financial Specialist 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 125 / 241



 

 
 

 

Presale Report  
 Le Sueur County, Minnesota 

December 12, 2017 
Page 1 

 

Executive Summary of Proposed Debt 
 

Proposed Issue: $9,255,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018B 

Purposes: The proposed Series 2018B issue includes funding for two purposes: 

1. Current refundings of the County’s callable Series 2006A, 2007A and 

2008A Bonds, and; 

2. To fund a portion of the costs associated with the construction of a new 

justice center, utilizing general obligation (G.O.) bonds authorized 

through a capital improvement plan (CIP) process. 

Interest rates on the Series 2006A, 2007A and 2008A Bonds proposed to be 

refunded are 4.00% - 4.30%, whereas the estimated refunding interest rates are 

1.50% to 2.00%. The refunding is expected to reduce the County’s future 

interest expense for these obligations by approximately $232,238 over the next 

6 years. The net present value benefit to the County is estimated to be $215,405, 

equal to 4.91% of the refunded debt service.  

The refundings are considered Current Refundings as the new Bonds will be 

issued within 90 days of the call dates for the Series 2006A, 2007A and 2008A 

Bond issues.    

Debt service will be paid from ad valorem property taxes, beginning with taxes 

payable in 2018. State law limits annual debt service on CIP bonds to 0.12% of 

the issuer’s estimated market value. After adding the estimated debt service on 

this issue to the actual debt service on the County’s existing CIP issues, the 

County has over $2,670,000 remaining in its annual CIP debt service capacity. 

Authority: The Bonds are being issued pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 373.40 and 

Chapter 475. The Bonds will be general obligations of the County for which its 

full faith, credit and taxing powers are pledged.  

The Bonds count against the County’s overall debt limit for tax-supported debt, 

in which outstanding principal is limited to 3% of the County’s estimated market 

value. Including this Bond issue (and also the estimated Series 2018A issue), 

the County has approximately $91,000,000 in remaining debt capacity for tax-

supported debt.  

Term/Call Feature: The Bonds are being issued for a 21-year term. Principal on the Bonds will be 

due on February 1 in the years 2019 through 2039. Interest is payable every six 

months beginning August 1, 2018. 

The Bonds maturing on and after February 1, 2029 will be pre-payable at the 

County’s sole discretion on February 1, 2028 or any date thereafter. 

Bank Qualification: Because the County is expecting to issue no more than $10,000,000 in tax 

exempt debt during the 2018 calendar year, the County will be able to designate 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 126 / 241



 

 
 

 

Presale Report  
 Le Sueur County, Minnesota 

December 12, 2017 
Page 2 

 

the Bonds as “bank qualified” obligations.  Bank qualified status broadens the 

market for the Bonds, which can result in lower interest rates. 

Rating: The County’s most recent bond issues were rated “AA” by Standard & Poor’s.  

The County will request a new rating for the Bonds. 

If the winning bidder on the Bonds elects to purchase bond insurance, the rating 

for the issue may be higher than the County’s bond rating in the event that the 

bond rating of the insurer is higher than that of the County.  

Basis for Recommendation: The proposed Bond issue is the most cost-efficient means of achieving the 

desired CIP financing, and is expected to yield the lowest possible interest cost 

while also preserving future prepayment flexibility. Moreover, the competitive 

sale approach described below is consistent with the County’s historical debt 

issuance method, as well as best practices published by the Governmental 

Finance Officers Association (GFOA).  

Method of Sale/Placement: In order to obtain the lowest interest cost to the County, we will competitively 

bid the purchase of the Bonds from local and national underwriters/banks. 

We have included an allowance for discount bidding equal to 1.20% of the 

principal amount of the issue. The discount is treated as an interest item and 

provides the underwriter with all or a portion of their compensation in the 

transaction.  If the Bonds are purchased at a price greater than the minimum bid 

amount (maximum discount), the unused allowance may be used to lower the 

County’s borrowing amount. 

Under current market conditions, most investors in municipal bonds prefer 

“premium” pricing structures.  A premium is achieved when the coupon for any 

maturity (the interest rate paid by the issuer) exceeds the yield to the investor, 

resulting in a price paid that is greater than the face value of the bonds.  The sum 

of the amounts paid in excess of face value is considered “reoffering premium.” 

The amount of the premium varies, but it is not uncommon to see premiums for 

new issues in the range of 2.00% to 10.00% of the face amount of the issue. This 

means that an issuer with a $2,000,000 offering may receive bids that result in 

proceeds of $2,040,000 to $2,200,000.   

For this Bond issuance, it is to be determined if any premium received will 

reduce the size of the issue or increase the net proceeds of the project. The 

adjustments may slightly change the true interest cost of the original bid, either 

up or down. 

Review of Existing Debt: We have reviewed all outstanding indebtedness for the County and find that no 

additional refunding opportunities exist at this time other than the proposed 

current refudings for the Series 2006A, 2007A and 2008A Bonds included in 

this issue.  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 127 / 241



 

 
 

 

Presale Report  
 Le Sueur County, Minnesota 

December 12, 2017 
Page 3 

 

We will continue to monitor the market and the call dates for the County’s 

outstanding debt and will alert you to any additional future refunding 

opportunities. 

Continuing Disclosure: Because the County has more than $10,000,000 in outstanding debt (including 

this issue) and this issue is over $1,000,000, the County will be agreeing to 

provide certain updated Annual Financial Information and its Audited Financial 

Statement annually as well as providing notices of the occurrence of certain 

“material events” to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”), 

as required by rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).  The 

County is already obligated to provide such reports for its existing bonds, and 

has contracted with Ehlers to prepare and file the necessary reports.   

Arbitrage Monitoring: 
 

 

Because the Bonds are tax-exempt securities, the County must ensure 

compliance with certain Internal Revenue Service (IRS) rules throughout the 

life of the issue.  These rules apply to all gross proceeds of the issue, including 

initial proceeds and investment earnings in construction, escrow, debt service, 

and any reserve funds.  How issuers spend bond proceeds and how they track 

interest earnings on funds (arbitrage/yield restriction compliance) are common 

subjects of IRS inquiries.  Your specific responsibilities will be detailed in the 

Tax Certificate prepared by your Bond Attorney and provided at closing.  You 

have retained Ehlers to assist you with compliance with these rules. 

Other Service Providers: This debt issuance will require the engagement of other public finance service 

providers.  This section identifies those other service providers, so Ehlers can 

coordinate their engagement on your behalf.  Where you have previously used 

a particular firm to provide a service, we have assumed that you will continue 

that relationship.  Fees charged by these service providers will be paid from 

proceeds of the obligation, unless you notify us that you wish to pay them from 

other sources.  Our pre-sale bond sizing includes a good faith estimate of these 

fees, so their final fees may vary.  If you have any questions pertaining to the 

identified service providers or their role, or if you would like to use a different 

service provider for any of the listed services please contact us. 

Bond Attorney: Dorsey & Whitney LLP 

Paying Agent: Bond Trust Services Corporation 

Rating Agency: Standard & Poor’s Global Ratings (S&P) 

 

This presale report summarizes our understanding of the County’s objectives for the structure and terms of this 

financing as of this date.  As additional facts become known or capital markets conditions change, we may need 

to modify the structure and/or terms of this financing to achieve results consistent with the County’s objectives. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 128 / 241



 

 
 

 

Presale Report  
 Le Sueur County, Minnesota 

December 12, 2017 
Page 4 

 

Proposed Debt Issuance Schedule 
 

Pre-Sale Review by Board of Commissioners: December 12, 2017 

Distribute Official Statement: Week of December 18, 2017 

Conference with Rating Agency: Week of January 1, 2018 

Board of Commissioners Awards Sale of the Bonds: January 16, 2018 

Estimated Closing Date: February 15, 2018  

 

Attachments 

Sources and Uses of Funds 

Proposed Debt Service Schedule 

Refunding Savings Analysis 

Resolution Authorizing Ehlers to Proceed with Bond Sale 

 

 

Ehlers Contacts 

Municipal Advisors: Bruce Kimmel (651) 697-8572 

 Todd Hagen 

Chris Mickelson 

(651) 697-8508 

(651) 697-8556 

Disclosure Coordinator: Jen Chapman (651) 697-8566 

Financial Analyst: Alicia Gage (651) 697-8551 

 

 

The Official Statement for this financing will be mailed or e-mailed to the Board of Commissioners for their 

review prior to the sale date.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 129 / 241



 

    

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$9,255,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018B 

Issue Summary - Proposed Cur Ref 06A, 07A, 08A & New Money 

Assuming Current GO BQ "AA" Market Rates plus 20bps 

Total Issue Sources And Uses 

 Dated 02/15/2018 |  Delivered 02/15/2018

Current Ref 

GO CIP 

2006A

Current Ref 

GO CIP 

2007A

Current Ref 

GO CIP 

2008A New Money

Issue 

Summary

 
Sources Of Funds 

Par Amount of Bonds $1,055,000.00 $1,240,000.00 $1,995,000.00 $4,965,000.00 $9,255,000.00

 
Total Sources $1,055,000.00 $1,240,000.00 $1,995,000.00 $4,965,000.00 $9,255,000.00

 
Uses Of Funds 

Total Underwriter's Discount  (1.200%) 12,660.00 14,880.00 23,940.00 59,580.00 111,060.00

Costs of Issuance 9,461.38 11,120.47 17,891.41 44,526.74 83,000.00

Deposit to Capitalized Interest (CIF) Fund - - - 127,320.79 127,320.79

Deposit to Project Construction Fund - - - 4,732,000.00 4,732,000.00

Deposit to Current Refunding Fund 1,028,416.67 1,214,052.08 1,956,743.54 - 4,199,212.29

Rounding Amount 4,461.95 (52.55) (3,574.95) 1,572.47 2,406.92

 
Total Uses $1,055,000.00 $1,240,000.00 $1,995,000.00 $4,965,000.00 $9,255,000.00

Proposed CR 2006A 2007A a  |  Issue Summary  |  12/ 7/2017  |  1:32 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 130 / 241



 

    

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$9,255,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018B 

Issue Summary - Proposed Cur Ref 06A, 07A, 08A & New Money 

Assuming Current GO BQ "AA" Market Rates plus 20bps 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total

02/15/2018 - - - - -

08/01/2018 - - 95,392.36 95,392.36 -

02/01/2019 715,000.00 1.500% 103,437.50 818,437.50 913,829.86

08/01/2019 - - 98,075.00 98,075.00 -

02/01/2020 930,000.00 1.600% 98,075.00 1,028,075.00 1,126,150.00

08/01/2020 - - 90,635.00 90,635.00 -

02/01/2021 945,000.00 1.700% 90,635.00 1,035,635.00 1,126,270.00

08/01/2021 - - 82,602.50 82,602.50 -

02/01/2022 965,000.00 1.800% 82,602.50 1,047,602.50 1,130,205.00

08/01/2022 - - 73,917.50 73,917.50 -

02/01/2023 985,000.00 1.850% 73,917.50 1,058,917.50 1,132,835.00

08/01/2023 - - 64,806.25 64,806.25 -

02/01/2024 785,000.00 2.000% 64,806.25 849,806.25 914,612.50

08/01/2024 - - 56,956.25 56,956.25 -

02/01/2025 220,000.00 2.100% 56,956.25 276,956.25 333,912.50

08/01/2025 - - 54,646.25 54,646.25 -

02/01/2026 220,000.00 2.200% 54,646.25 274,646.25 329,292.50

08/01/2026 - - 52,226.25 52,226.25 -

02/01/2027 225,000.00 2.300% 52,226.25 277,226.25 329,452.50

08/01/2027 - - 49,638.75 49,638.75 -

02/01/2028 230,000.00 2.450% 49,638.75 279,638.75 329,277.50

08/01/2028 - - 46,821.25 46,821.25 -

02/01/2029 240,000.00 2.550% 46,821.25 286,821.25 333,642.50

08/01/2029 - - 43,761.25 43,761.25 -

02/01/2030 245,000.00 2.650% 43,761.25 288,761.25 332,522.50

08/01/2030 - - 40,515.00 40,515.00 -

02/01/2031 250,000.00 2.800% 40,515.00 290,515.00 331,030.00

08/01/2031 - - 37,015.00 37,015.00 -

02/01/2032 260,000.00 2.900% 37,015.00 297,015.00 334,030.00

08/01/2032 - - 33,245.00 33,245.00 -

02/01/2033 265,000.00 3.000% 33,245.00 298,245.00 331,490.00

08/01/2033 - - 29,270.00 29,270.00 -

02/01/2034 275,000.00 3.100% 29,270.00 304,270.00 333,540.00

08/01/2034 - - 25,007.50 25,007.50 -

02/01/2035 280,000.00 3.200% 25,007.50 305,007.50 330,015.00

08/01/2035 - - 20,527.50 20,527.50 -

02/01/2036 290,000.00 3.250% 20,527.50 310,527.50 331,055.00

08/01/2036 - - 15,815.00 15,815.00 -

02/01/2037 300,000.00 3.350% 15,815.00 315,815.00 331,630.00

08/01/2037 - - 10,790.00 10,790.00 -

02/01/2038 310,000.00 3.400% 10,790.00 320,790.00 331,580.00

08/01/2038 - - 5,520.00 5,520.00 -

02/01/2039 320,000.00 3.450% 5,520.00 325,520.00 331,040.00

Total $9,255,000.00 - $2,062,412.36 $11,317,412.36 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $75,615.08

Average Life 8.170 Years

Average Coupon 2.7275145%

 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.8743900%

True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.8517361%

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 2.6788868%

All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.9832833%

 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 2.7275145%

Weighted Average Maturity 8.170 Years

Proposed CR 2006A 2007A a  |  Issue Summary  |  12/ 7/2017  |  1:32 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 131 / 241



 

    

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$9,255,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018B 

Issue Summary - Proposed Cur Ref 06A, 07A, 08A & New Money 

Assuming Current GO BQ "AA" Market Rates plus 20bps 

Net Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I CIF Net New D/S Fiscal Total

02/15/2018 - - - - - (2,406.92) -

08/01/2018 - - 95,392.36 95,392.36 (61,084.54) 34,307.82 -

02/01/2019 715,000.00 1.500% 103,437.50 818,437.50 (66,236.25) 752,201.25 784,102.15

08/01/2019 - - 98,075.00 98,075.00 - 98,075.00 -

02/01/2020 930,000.00 1.600% 98,075.00 1,028,075.00 - 1,028,075.00 1,126,150.00

08/01/2020 - - 90,635.00 90,635.00 - 90,635.00 -

02/01/2021 945,000.00 1.700% 90,635.00 1,035,635.00 - 1,035,635.00 1,126,270.00

08/01/2021 - - 82,602.50 82,602.50 - 82,602.50 -

02/01/2022 965,000.00 1.800% 82,602.50 1,047,602.50 - 1,047,602.50 1,130,205.00

08/01/2022 - - 73,917.50 73,917.50 - 73,917.50 -

02/01/2023 985,000.00 1.850% 73,917.50 1,058,917.50 - 1,058,917.50 1,132,835.00

08/01/2023 - - 64,806.25 64,806.25 - 64,806.25 -

02/01/2024 785,000.00 2.000% 64,806.25 849,806.25 - 849,806.25 914,612.50

08/01/2024 - - 56,956.25 56,956.25 - 56,956.25 -

02/01/2025 220,000.00 2.100% 56,956.25 276,956.25 - 276,956.25 333,912.50

08/01/2025 - - 54,646.25 54,646.25 - 54,646.25 -

02/01/2026 220,000.00 2.200% 54,646.25 274,646.25 - 274,646.25 329,292.50

08/01/2026 - - 52,226.25 52,226.25 - 52,226.25 -

02/01/2027 225,000.00 2.300% 52,226.25 277,226.25 - 277,226.25 329,452.50

08/01/2027 - - 49,638.75 49,638.75 - 49,638.75 -

02/01/2028 230,000.00 2.450% 49,638.75 279,638.75 - 279,638.75 329,277.50

08/01/2028 - - 46,821.25 46,821.25 - 46,821.25 -

02/01/2029 240,000.00 2.550% 46,821.25 286,821.25 - 286,821.25 333,642.50

08/01/2029 - - 43,761.25 43,761.25 - 43,761.25 -

02/01/2030 245,000.00 2.650% 43,761.25 288,761.25 - 288,761.25 332,522.50

08/01/2030 - - 40,515.00 40,515.00 - 40,515.00 -

02/01/2031 250,000.00 2.800% 40,515.00 290,515.00 - 290,515.00 331,030.00

08/01/2031 - - 37,015.00 37,015.00 - 37,015.00 -

02/01/2032 260,000.00 2.900% 37,015.00 297,015.00 - 297,015.00 334,030.00

08/01/2032 - - 33,245.00 33,245.00 - 33,245.00 -

02/01/2033 265,000.00 3.000% 33,245.00 298,245.00 - 298,245.00 331,490.00

08/01/2033 - - 29,270.00 29,270.00 - 29,270.00 -

02/01/2034 275,000.00 3.100% 29,270.00 304,270.00 - 304,270.00 333,540.00

08/01/2034 - - 25,007.50 25,007.50 - 25,007.50 -

02/01/2035 280,000.00 3.200% 25,007.50 305,007.50 - 305,007.50 330,015.00

08/01/2035 - - 20,527.50 20,527.50 - 20,527.50 -

02/01/2036 290,000.00 3.250% 20,527.50 310,527.50 - 310,527.50 331,055.00

08/01/2036 - - 15,815.00 15,815.00 - 15,815.00 -

02/01/2037 300,000.00 3.350% 15,815.00 315,815.00 - 315,815.00 331,630.00

08/01/2037 - - 10,790.00 10,790.00 - 10,790.00 -

02/01/2038 310,000.00 3.400% 10,790.00 320,790.00 - 320,790.00 331,580.00

08/01/2038 - - 5,520.00 5,520.00 - 5,520.00 -

02/01/2039 320,000.00 3.450% 5,520.00 325,520.00 - 325,520.00 331,040.00

Total $9,255,000.00 - $2,062,412.36 $11,317,412.36 (127,320.79) $11,187,684.65 -

Proposed CR 2006A 2007A a  |  Issue Summary  |  12/ 7/2017  |  1:32 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 132 / 241



 

    

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$4,290,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018B 

Issue Summary - Proposed Cur Ref 06A, 07A, 08A & New Money 

Assuming Current GO BQ "AA" Market Rates plus 20bps 

Debt Service Comparison 

Date Total P+I Net New D/S Old Net D/S Savings

02/01/2019 786,509.07 785,674.62 830,547.50 44,872.88

02/01/2020 793,677.50 793,677.50 834,147.50 40,470.00

02/01/2021 791,997.50 791,997.50 836,547.50 44,550.00

02/01/2022 799,417.50 799,417.50 837,427.50 38,010.00

02/01/2023 800,737.50 800,737.50 836,767.50 36,030.00

02/01/2024 581,400.00 581,400.00 609,705.00 28,305.00

Total $4,553,739.07 $4,552,904.62 $4,785,142.50 $232,237.88

PV Analysis Summary (Net to Net) 

 
Gross PV Debt Service Savings..................... 214,571.03

 
Net PV Cashflow Savings @  2.679%(Bond Yield)..... 214,571.03

 
Contingency or Rounding Amount.................... 834.45

Net Present Value Benefit $215,405.48

 
Net PV Benefit / $4,385,412.90 PV Refunded Debt Service 4.912%

Net PV Benefit /  $4,185,000 Refunded Principal... 5.147%

Net PV Benefit /  $4,290,000 Refunding Principal.. 5.021%

 
Refunding Bond Information 

 
Refunding Dated Date 

Refunding Delivery Date 2/15/2018

Aggregate  |  12/ 7/2017  |  1:32 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 133 / 241



1

At a.m. the Chairperson called the Public Hearing for the approval of the 2018 to 
2022 Capital Improvement Bonds pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 373.40.  

The Chairperson stated that this was the time and place fixed for a public hearing to be held on 
the County’s Capital Improvement Plan (the “Plan”) and issuance of bonds (the “Bonds”) under 
Minnesota Statutes, Section 373.40.  The County Administrator presented an affidavit showing 
publication of the notice of public hearing at least fourteen (14) but not more than twenty-eight 
(28) days prior to the date fixed for the public hearing in the Montgomery Messenger, being the 
official newspaper of the County.  The affidavit was examined, found to be satisfactory and 
ordered it to be placed on file with the County Administrator.

The Chairperson then opened the meeting for the public hearing on the proposal to adopt the 
Plan and approve the issuance of the Bonds.  The purpose of the hearing was explained, the 
nature of the Plan and the Bonds was discussed and all persons present who desired to do so 
were afforded an opportunity to express their views with respect to the proposal to approve the 
Plan and issue the Bonds.

With comments being received from the public on the proposals, at 
_______ a.m. the Chairperson declared the public hearing to be closed.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 134 / 241



2

On motion by , seconded by , the Board approved the following 
resolution: 

RESOLUTION RELATING TO APPROVAL OF A CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN AND ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL 

IMPROVEMENT PLAN BONDS, SERIES 2018B

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners (the Board) of Le Sueur 
County, Minnesota (the Issuer), as follows:

WHEREAS, the Issuer has published notice of its intent to hold a hearing 
on the issuance of capital improvement plan bonds under Minnesota Statutes, 
Section 373.40 (the “Bonds”) and on its proposed Capital Improvement Plan (the 
“Plan”), at least fourteen (14) but not more than twenty-eight (28) days prior to 
the date hereof, pursuant to and in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 
373.40 (the “Act”); and

WHEREAS, the Board held a public hearing on the date hereof on the 
Plan and on the issuance of the Bonds to finance a portion of the costs associated 
with the construction of a new Justice Center as detailed in the County's 2018 -
2022 Capital Improvement Plan. The County will pay debt service with future ad 
valorem property taxes. As described in the Act and in the Plan (the “Project”); 

WHEREAS, the Board has considered the factors described in subdivision 
3 of the Act with respect to the Plan;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board hereby a) approves the Plan, and (b) 
authorizes the issuance of the Bonds in an amount not to exceed $5,000,000.  Pursuant to 
Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.60, Subdivision 2, paragraph (9), Ehlers & Associates is 
authorized to prepare and distribute an Official Statement and to solicit proposals for the Bonds 
on behalf of the County on a competitive sale basis.  This Board shall meet on January 16, 2018, 
for the purpose of considering proposals for the purchase of the Bonds and of taking such action 
thereon as may be in the best interests of the County.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 135 / 241



Resolution No.  _______________

Commissioner _________________ introduced the following resolution and moved its adoption:

Resolution Providing for the Sale of
$9,255,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018B

A. WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Le Sueur County, Minnesota has heretofore determined 
that it is necessary and expedient to issue the County's $9,255,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 
2018B (the "Bonds"), to finance a portion of the costs associated with the construction of a new 
Justice Center and current refundings of the Series 2006A, 2007A and 2008A Bonds; and 

B. WHEREAS, the County has retained Ehlers & Associates, Inc., in Roseville, Minnesota ("Ehlers"), as 
its independent municipal advisor for the Bonds in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 
475.60, Subdivision 2(9);

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Le Sueur County, 
Minnesota, as follows:

1. Authorization.  The Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes Ehlers to assist the County for the 
sale of the Bonds.

2. Meeting; Proposal Opening.  The Board of Commissioners shall meet at 11:45 a.m. on January 16, 
2018, for the purpose of considering proposals for and awarding the sale of the Bonds.

3. Official Statement.  In connection with said sale, the officers or employees of the County are hereby 
authorized to cooperate with Ehlers and participate in the preparation of an official statement for the 
Bonds and to execute and deliver it on behalf of the County upon its completion.

The motion for the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly seconded by Commissioner 
_______________________ and, after full discussion thereof and upon a vote being taken thereon, the 
following Commissioners voted in favor thereof:

and the following voted against the same:

Whereupon said resolution was declared duly passed and adopted.

Dated this 12th day of December, 2017.

_____________________________________________
County Administrator

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 136 / 241



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 12, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 9

10:10 a.m. Amy Beatty, Recycling Agreement with City of Le Center 
(5 min)

Staff Contact: Amy Beatty

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 137 / 241



  ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES
Mailing Address: 88 South Park Avenue, Le Center, MN 56057
Physical Address: 515 South Maple Avenue, Le Center, MN 56057
Direct Dial: 507-357-8538   Fax: 507-357-8541
Email: environmentalservices@co.le-sueur.mn.us
County Website: www.co.le-sueur.mn.us 

Date: Wednesday, November 29, 2017

To: Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners

From: Amy Beatty, Le Sueur County Environmental Programs Specialist

RE: 2018 Le Sueur County and City of Le Center Recycling Agreement

Since 2001, the City of Le Center has operated a recycling facility open to all county residents.  
The county has funded the recycling facility with SCORE1 funding.

Change to the 2018 agreement:
1. The term of the agreement – January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018.

A payment of $2,300 per month for the years 2017, 2018, and 2019 was agreed upon at the 
December 20, 2016 County Board of Commissioners meeting.

If you have further questions or comments regarding this agreement, please contact me at 507-
357-8203.

1 In 1989, the Minnesota Legislature adopted comprehensive waste reduction and recycling legislation 
based on the recommendations of the Governor's Select Committee on Recycling and the Environment. 
SCORE is part of Minnesota’s Waste Management Act and provides counties with a funding source to 
develop waste reduction, recycling and solid waste management programs. Ambitious goals for 
recycling and waste reduction were set for Minnesota counties and have typically been met, if not 
exceeded.

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 138 / 241

mailto:environmentalservices@co.le-sueur.mn.us
http://www.co.le-sueur.mn.us


RECYCLING SERVICES AGREEMENT
BETWEEN CITY OF LE CENTER AND LE SUEUR COUNTY

THIS AGREEMENT is between the City of Le Center and Le Sueur County, through their 
respective City Council and Board of Commissioners, (hereinafter singly referred to as “Party” or jointly 
referred to as “Parties”).  

WHEREAS, Le Sueur County desires to create a mechanism whereby residents of the county 
may use a county-wide recycling facility; and

WHEREAS, it is recognized that there is a benefit derived from increasing the availability for 
recycling by the City of Le Center operating a county-wide recycling facility; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the City of Le 
Center and Le Sueur County hereby agree as follows:

1. PURPOSE

This Agreement is to provide recycling and waste reduction services to the residents of Le Sueur 
County.  The City of Le Center has agreed to receive the recyclable materials brought to the 
recycling center located at the city garage, 112 S. Lexington Avenue, Le Center, by any resident 
of Le Sueur County.

2. TERM

This Agreement shall commence on January 1, 2018, and terminate on December 31, 2018, 
unless terminated earlier as provided herein. 

3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT

The City agrees to receive recyclable materials at its recycling drop site at 112 S. Lexington 
Avenue, Le Center.  The City has entered into a contract with a waste management company to 
provide recycling service.  In this contract, the company will provide containers and will remove 
the recyclable materials on a set schedule.  These materials will be transported to recycling 
facility that meets the requirements under state statutes and rules, county ordinances and solid 
waste management plan, and city ordinances.  

The City of Le Center shall provide, at its own expense, such machinery and equipment as may 
be necessary to receive these recyclable materials.

4. RECYCLABLE MATERIAL

The following recyclable materials will be received at this recycling drop site at no charge to 
residents of Le Sueur County: 

a. Corrugated Cardboard.  These are corrugated cardboard materials used primarily for 
packaging.  Materials to be accepted must be 100% true corrugated, not coated with wax, 
plastics, or food contaminants or contain no chipboard.  

b. Aluminum, Tin/Steel, and Bi-Metal Food and Beverage Cans.  These are containers 
fabricated primarily of aluminum, bi-metal, and tin-plated steel and commonly used for 
beverages and canned food products.  Cans shall be rinsed and be reasonably clean.  The 
following types of metals shall not be accepted aerosol cans, sheet metal, or scrap metal.  

c. Plastics, Numbers 1 through 7.  Plastic containers must have a neck or pourable content.  
Containers shall be rinsed with all caps and lids removed.  The following items shall not be 
accepted margarine tubs, ice cream buckets, food trays, and 5 gallon plastic pails.  

d. Glass Food and Beverage Containers.  Clear, green, blue, and amber glass.  These shall 
include containers fabricated of glass and used for packaging and bottling of various foods 
and beverages.  Containers shall be rinsed with the caps removed.  The following types of 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 139 / 241



2

glass shall not be accepted window glass, mirrors, light bulbs, ceramics, and glass jars or 
bottles that contained hazardous materials.  

e. Mixed Paper.  This included newspaper, magazines, catalogs, direct mail advertisements, 
brochures, booklets, office paper, hard and soft cover books, phone books, manila office 
folders, computer paper, envelopes, letters, and boxboard (cookie, cake, cereal, and chip 
boxes).  The following items shall not be accepted beer/pop carrying cases, egg cartons, milk 
cartons, frozen food boxes, foil, plastic wrap, and carbon paper.  

It is understood that recyclable materials will be accepted “commingled.”  Commingled recyclable 
materials shall be aluminum, bi-metal, steel/tin food and beverage containers, glass food and 
beverage containers, and numbers 1 through 7 plastic containers received together and handled 
as one commodity.  

Recycled materials may be added to or deleted from the list by written request of the parties or as 
required by law.

5. FACILITY OPERATIONS

a. Hours for operation of the recycling drop site are as follows: Each Saturday from 7:00 am to 
12:00 pm.  On the event a state or federal holiday falls on a Saturday, the recycling drop site 
is not required to be open to the public.

b. The City of Le Center agrees to have at least one employee on site at all times during 
operational hours to assist county residents with recycling questions and sorting of 
recyclables.

6. PAYMENT

Le Sueur County shall pay the City of Le Center in the amount of $2,300.00 per month for the 
term of the agreement.  This payment will cover the costs for labor, recycling services, insurance, 
and miscellaneous costs.  

7. PERMITS AND LICENSES

The City of Le Center shall be responsible for all applicable state and county permits and licenses 
required to operate the facility.  

8. RECORDS

Each Party shall maintain financial and other records and accounts in accordance with 
requirements of the State of Minnesota.  Each Party shall maintain strict accountability of all funds 
and maintain records of all receipts and disbursements.  

9. AUDIT/ACCESS TO FACILITY

Each Party shall allow the other Party and the State of Minnesota pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 
16C.05, subdivision 5, including the Legislative Auditor or the State Auditor, access to its records 
at reasonable hours, including all books, records, documents, and accounting procedures and 
practices relevant to the subject matter of this Agreement, for purposes of audit.  

8. COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS OF THE LAW

In performing the provisions of this Agreement, each Party agrees to comply with all applicable 
federal, state or local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations.  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 140 / 241



3

9. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

No person shall illegally, on the grounds of race, creed, color, religion, sex, marital status, public 
assistance status, sexual preference, handicap, age or national origin, be excluded from full 
employment rights in, participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subject to 
unlawful discrimination under any program, service or activity hereunder.

10. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

It is understood and agreed that this Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties 
and that this Agreement supersedes all oral and written agreements and negotiations between 
the parties relating to the subject matter hereof.

11. AMENDMENTS

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any amendments, alterations, variations, 
modifications, or waivers of this Agreement shall be valid only when they have been reduced to 
writing and duly signed by each Party.

12. TERMINATION

Either Party may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, by providing ninety (90) days’ 
written notice to other Party.  Termination shall not act to discharge any liability incurred by any 
Party before the effective date of termination, including payments or credits due.  Such liability 
shall continue until appropriately discharged by law or agreement.  

13. CONTACTS

The individuals designated as contact persons for this agreement for each party shall be:

Chris Collins
City of Le Center
10 West Tyrone Street
Le Center, MN 56057
Ph: 507-357-4450
Email: collinschrisl@yahoo.com 

Amy Beatty
Le Sueur County Environmental Services
88 South Park Avenue
Le Center, MN 56057
Ph: 507-357-8203
Email: abeatty@co.le-sueur.mn.us

14. LIABILITY/INDEMNIFICATION AMONG THE PARTIES

a. General Indemnification.  The Parties agree that each Party will be responsible for its 
own acts and the results thereof and shall not be responsible for the acts of the other 
Party and the results thereof.  Each Party therefore agrees that it will assume liability for 
itself, its agents, employees, or contractors for any injury to persons or property resulting 
in any manner from the conduct of its own operations, and operations of its agents, 
employees or contractors.  Each Party shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the 
other Party for all liability, obligations, claims, loss and expense, including reasonable 
attorneys and other professional fees, resulting from its acts or the acts of its agents, 
employees or contractors.

b. Indemnification for Benefit of Parties.  The indemnification provisions of this Section 14 
are for the benefit of the Parties only and shall not establish, of themselves, any liability to 
third parties.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to waive or limit the provisions of 
Minn. Stat. Chap. 466, or any other law, legislative or judicial, which limits governmental 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 141 / 241

mailto:collinschrisl@yahoo.com
mailto:abeatty@co.le-sueur.mn.us


4

liability.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to this Agreement have hereunto set their hands on the date written 
as follows:  

CITY OF LE CENTER

Mayor, City of Le Center

Date

Approved as to form:

City of Le Center Attorney’s Office

Date

COUNTY OF LE SUEUR

Chair, Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners

Date

Approved as to form:

Le Sueur County Attorney’s Office

Date

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 142 / 241



City of Le Center Recycling Facility

Year Co-Mingled (tons) Paper/Cardboard (tons) Cost Per Month Yearly Cost
2001 53.785 126.57 $ 1,000.00 $ 7,000.00 1st year of county-wide operation
2002 51.4 150.01 $ 1,033.00 $ 12,396.00
2003 58.47 153.89 $ 1,056.00 $ 12,672.00
2004 62.67 168.18 $ 1,073.00 $ 12,876.00
2005 58.95 162.3 $ 1,110.56 $ 13,326.72
2006 69.44 160.31 $ 1,149.43 $ 13,793.16
2007 75.82 163.48 $ 1,500.00 $ 18,000.00
2008 77.19 153.12 $ 1,564.50 $ 18,774.00
2009 80.88 137.08 $ 1,581.71 $ 18,980.52
2010 84.42 141.83 $ 1,950.00 $ 23,400.00
2011 78.92 132.93 $ 1,950.00 $ 23,400.00
2012 86.28 139.32 $ 1,950.00 $ 23,400.00
2013 90.38 137.77 $ 1,950.00 $ 23,400.00
2014 97.64 128.88 $ 1,950.00 $ 23,400.00
2015 103.32 143.52 $ 1,950.00 $ 23,400.00
2016 103.13 148.97 $ 1,950.00 $ 23,400.00
2017 $ 2,300.00 $ 27,600.00

Total 1232.695 2348.16 $ 319,218.40

*Will receive the 2017 recycling tonnages when the city submits its next license application (May 1, 2018 to April 30, 2019) .

Monthly payment adjusted annually by an amount equal to the percentage increase from the previous 12 month period by the Consumer Price Index.
In 2006, the city asked for the 2007 monthly payment to be $1500 + Consumer Price Index increase to cover the costs to operate.  

The City of Le Center is responsible for all applicable permits and insurance.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 143 / 241



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 12, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 10

10:15 a.m. Jeff Neisen, IT Director ( 15 min)

RE: Office 2016 License Purchase & AS400 upgrade. 

Staff Contact: Jeff Neisen

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 144 / 241



 

 

End of Life for 2007 was 10‐10‐2017 

End of Life for 2010 is 10‐13‐20 

End of Life for 2013 is 4‐11‐23 

Currently we are using 2010.  County has 300 PC/Laptops/Devices with Office on them.  Starting in 2018 

we will deploy office 2016 on ALL new PC, which is approximately 80 annually. 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 145 / 241



 
Pricing Proposal
Quotation #:  14511323
Created On:  11/30/2017
Valid Until:   12/30/2017

 
County of Le Sueur MN

 
Inside Account
Executive

 
Jeff Neisen
88 South Park Avenue
Le Center, MN 56057
United States
Phone: 507.357.2251 ext 286
Fax:  
Email: jneisen@co.le-sueur.mn.us

 

Stephanie Hawley
290 Davidson Ave
Somerset, NJ 08873
Phone: (732) 652-0332
Fax: (732) 564-8078
Email: Stephanie_Hawley@shi.com

All Prices are in US Dollar (USD) 
  Product Qty Your Price Total

 
1 Microsoft Office Professional Plus 2016 - License - 1 PC - Select Plus - Win - Single

Language 
   Microsoft - Part#: 79P-05582

177 $332.00 $58,764.00

 
Subtotal $58,764.00

Total $58,764.00

Additional Comments

Thank you for choosing SHI International Corp! The pricing offered on this quote proposal is valid through the expiration date set
above. To ensure the best level of service, please provide End User Name, Phone Number, Email Address and applicable Contract
Number when submitting a Purchase Order.

SHI International Corp. is 100% Minority Owned, Woman Owned Business.
TAX ID# 22-3009648; DUNS# 61-1429481; CCR# 61-243957G; CAGE 1HTF0

The Products offered under this proposal are subject to the SHI Return Policy posted at www.shi.com/returnpolicy, unless there is
an existing agreement between SHI and the Customer.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 146 / 241

http://www.shi.com/returnpolicy


    
      Your Partner in Technology! 

 

 

Project Overview: 

Upgrade existing production IBM i system with a new IBM Power 8 system.  In addition to the new 

system also upgrade the current operating system from V7R1 to V7R2.  Plus upgrade the DR target 

system to V7R2 as well. 

 

Hardware/Software Quote: 

Qty. Description      Price Each  Price total 

1 IBM i System Power 8 (see below for Hardware Config) $20,831.00  $20,831.00 

1 IBM LTO6 Tape Drive, Rails, Cables, Shipping     $4103.00     $4103.00 

1  IBM Software-P05 Registration 24 x 7        $141.00       $141.00 

1 PO5 OTC           $291.00       $291.00 

1 IBM Software- IBM i License Transfer      $4850.00     $4850.00  

1 IBM Software- Media          $350.00       $350.00  

1 IBM Software- 3 year SWMA & Upgrade base warranty    $5300.88     $5300.88 

on Power 8 and LTO6 to 24 x 7 Onsite        

 Total Hardware and Software        $35,866.88 

Note:  After the 3 year warranty hardware maintenance will be $1044.00 annually for the IBM i and $758 

for LTO6.  Plus upcharges for additional 24 x 7 coverage for another 3 years - $2300.00 

 

Services Quote:  

1 Migration and implementation of new Power 8 system          

 and OS Upgrade V7R1 to V7R2 onsite, after hours/weekend  

1 Upgrade of V7R1 to V7R2 on DR system   

 Total Services fee for setup, migration and (2) V7R2 upgrades:       $6995.00    

 

 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 147 / 241



    
      Your Partner in Technology! 

 

Mimix Quote: 

1 Mimix license upgrade       $3925.00     $3925.00 

1 Mimix software maintenance      $1014.61     $1014.61 

1 Services for Mimix move to new Power 8      $875.00       $875.00 

 Total Mimix licensing:            $5814.61 

  

 

Total Hardware, Software and Services                 $48,676.49  

 

 

 

 

Signature: __________________________ 

Date: _________________  

  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 148 / 241



    
      Your Partner in Technology! 

 

Hardware Configuration: 

Description                        Quantity 

8286-41A Server 1:8286 Model 41A 1    

0041 Device Parity Protection-All, Specify Code 1    

0205 RISC-to-RISC Data Migration 1    

0267 IBM i Operating System Partition Specify 1    

0567 IBM i 7.1 Specify Code 1    

3930 System Serial Port Converter Cable 1    

4650 Rack Indicator- Not Factory Integrated 1    

5557 System Console-Ethernet No IOP 1    

5771 SATA Slimline DVD-RAM Drive 1    

5899 PCIe2 4-port 1GbE Adapter 1    

6470 Power Cord 1.8m (6-ft), Drawer to Wall 2    
 (125V/15A)     

9300 Language Group Specify - US English 1    

9441 New IBM i License Core Counter 1    

9448 Other IBM i License Core Counter 3    

EB2L AC Power Supply - 900W  2    

EB72 IBM i 7.2 Indicator 1    

EJ0P Storage Backplane 18 SFF-3 Bays/DVD Bay/Dual           1    
 IOA with Write Cache     

EJ10 PCIe3 SAS Tape/DVD Adapter Quad-port 6Gb 1    
 x8     

EJT9 Front Bezel for 18-Bay BackPlane 1    

EJTN Rack-mount Rail Kit 1    

ELTA #ESFA Load Source Specify 1    

EM91 16 GB DDR4 Memory 4    

EPXK 4-Core 3.02 GHz POWER8 Processor Card 1    

EPYK One Processor Core Activation for #EPXK 4    

ESC6 S&H-b 1    

ESFA 283GB 15K RPM SAS SFF-3 4K Block - 4224 6    
 Disk Drive     

ESFG 283GB 15K RPM SAS SFF-3 Disk 4K Block 4    

EU19 Cable Ties & Labels 1    

EU2C Express Edition 4 core (IBM i) 1    

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 149 / 241



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 12, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 11

10:30 a.m. Dave Tiegs, Highway Engineer (20 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 150 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 151 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 152 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 153 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 154 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 155 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 156 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 157 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 158 / 241



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 12, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 12

10:50 a.m.  Human Resources (10 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 159 / 241



 
 

Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
88 SOUTH PARK AVENUE  LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057 

Telephone: 507-357-8517  Fax: 507-357-8607 
Cindy Westerhouse – Human Resources Director 

Human Resources 

 
 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
AGENDA ITEMS 

December 12, 2017 
 
 
Recommendation to promote Jose Aguillon as a full time Help Desk Supervisor in 
the Information Technology Department, Grade 9, Step 3 at $22.95 per hour, 
effective December 11, 2017.   
 
Recommendation to post and advertise for a full time IT Help Desk Technician, in 
the Information Technology Department, Grade 6, Step 1 at $17.94 per hour.   
 
Recommendation to reappoint Shayne Bender as the County Assessor.  This 
appointment is a four-year term beginning January 1, 2018. 
 
Recommendation to promote Joshua Mankowski as a full time Environmental, 
Planning and Zoning Administrator in the Environmental, Planning and Zoning 
Department, Grade 14, Step 7 at $35.35 per hour, effective December 11, 2017.   
 
Recommendation to post and advertise for a full time Environmental Resources 
Specialist in the Environmental, Planning and Zoning Department, Grade 10, Step 
1 at $22.64 per hour.   
 
Recommendation to grant regular status to Caitlin Meyer, full time Case Aide in 
Human Services, effective December 12, 2017.  Caitlin Meyer has completed the 
six-month probationary period. 
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 160 / 241



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 12, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 13

11:00 a.m. Reconvene Public Hearing for County Ditches 19, 28, 42, 
52 and 69 (20 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 161 / 241



[15741-0029/2447550/1] 1

STATE OF MINNESOTA
LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

SEATED AS DRAINAGE AUTHORITY UNDER STATUTES CHAPTER 103E
FOR LE SUEUR COUNTY DITCH 19

The matter of the Redetermination of Benefits 
for Le Sueur County Ditch 19

Findings and Order Adopting 
Redetermined Benefits 

At a public hearing conducted by the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners, 
Drainage Authority for Le Sueur County Ditch 19 (CD 19), on December 12, 2017, continued 
from November 30, 2017, Commissioner _________________ moved, seconded by 
Commissioner _____________ for adoption of the following Findings and Order:

Findings:

1. CD 19 was established in 1903 and subsequently improved in 1949. Benefits for CD 19 
were determined concurrent with establishment in 1903 and improvement benefits 
were determined in 1949, prior to the initiation of modern, intensive farming and 
drainage practices within the County. 

2. CD 19 consists of an open ditch drainage system. 

3. The system provides an outlet for lands in Sections 1 and 2 in Lexington Township, 
Sections 29, 30 and 31 in Lanesburgh Township, Section 6 in Montgomery Township and 
Sections 25, 35 and 36 in Derrynane Township, all in Le Sueur County.

4. Based on its finding that the conditions required for the initiation of a redetermination 
of benefits exist, that the original benefits and damages do not reflect reasonable 
present day land values and the benefitted areas have changed for CD 19, the Drainage 
Authority ordered a redetermination of benefits and appointed Ron Ringquist, Bill 
Anderson and Allan Kerber as viewers for the redetermination of benefits.

5. Upon taking their oath, the viewers initiated a redetermination of benefits according 
statutes chapter 103E. 

6. Under Minnesota Statutes § 103E.351 subdivision 1, the viewers obligation is to proceed 
as provided for viewers and the Viewers' Report in sections 103E.311 to 103E.321.  
Under section 103E.311, they are obligated to determine the benefits and damages to 
all property affected by the drainage project and make a Viewers' Report.  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 162 / 241



[15741-0029/2447550/1] 2

7. The viewers completed their report which included a benefits and damages statement 
in October 18, 2017, for all property affected by the drainage project and filed their 
report with the Drainage Authority.

8. The Drainage Authority prepared Property Owners’ Reports and mailed them to the 
owners of property identified in the Viewers’ Report.

9. Property Owners’ Reports were mailed on November 13, 2017.

10. Notice of the hearing was posted not later than November 13, 2017, at the Le Sueur 
County Courthouse and remained through the date of the Final Hearing.

11. Notice of the hearing was published November 9, 16, and 23, 2017 in the New Prague 
Times and Montgomery Messenger, legal newspapers in general circulation in the area 
of CD 19.

12. Notice of the hearing was mailed within one week after the first publication, but not 
later than November 13, 2017, to owners of properties identified in the Viewers’ Report, 
governmental units affected by the project and the commissioner of the Minnesota 
Department of Natural Resources.

13. Evidence of all actions in this matter, including preliminary orders, appointments, oaths, 
affidavits of mailing, publication and posting as well as hearing agendas and 
presentation materials are present in the record of proceedings and are incorporated 
herein by reference.

14. The final hearing on the viewers’ redetermination of benefits was held on November 30, 
2017, and continued to December 12, 2017. 

15. At the hearing, the viewers appeared and presented the Viewers’ Report, Benefits and 
Damages Statement and redetermined benefits.  The viewers further provided detail of 
the viewing process and the information used by the viewers to:  (1) verify the boundary 
of the watershed of the Ditch; (2) verify and confirm the existence of drainage benefit; 
and (3) determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 
construction of CD 19.

16. The viewers included, in their determinations, the amount of damages necessary to 
acquire and establish a one rod grass buffer strip along all reaches of open ditch on CD 
19.  

17. Members of the public attended the hearing and asked questions or made comments 
regarding the redetermination of benefits.

18. Written comments were received and read into the record along with responses.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 163 / 241



[15741-0029/2447550/1] 3

19. At the conclusion of public comment during the hearing, the Board adopted a motion 
to: close the hearing to public comment; direct staff to prepare findings and an order 
consistent with the proceedings, that the draft findings and order be written to affect 
adoption of the determined benefits and confirmation of the viewers’ reports; and 
continue the hearing to the Board’s regular meeting on Tuesday, December 12, 2017, at 
11:00 a.m. in the Commissioners’ Room of the Le Sueur County Courthouse, or by 
adjournment to an appropriate time on the Board’s agenda, at which meeting the Board 
will consider findings and an order as discussed. 

20. The Viewers’ Report is attached as Exhibit A. 

21. The viewers prepared a Benefits and Damages Statement outlining the basis of their 
benefits and damages determinations. The Benefits and Damages Statement is attached 
as Exhibit B. 

22. The viewers reviewed all property within the drainage areas of the drainage system as 
part of the redetermination of benefits process.

23. The viewers determined the amount of damages to be paid for the acquisition of 
property for the establishment of best management practices, including grass strips, 
necessary to control erosion, sedimentation, improve water quality, or maintain the 
efficiency of the drainage system as required under statutes section 103E.021. The 
viewers compared sales in the area in arriving at an average sales price used in 
establishing a payment rate.

24. The viewers used maps, LIDAR data and other information, along with visual inspection 
of the watershed of the drainage system to determine the boundaries of the benefiting 
area.  

25. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers paid particular attention to 
altered land use and drainage alterations which facilitate the removal of water from 
property directing it to the drainage system.

26. To determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 
drainage system, the viewers conducted a condition comparison comparing the 
expected, pre-ditch, unaltered state of the watershed to the existing, altered and 
improved condition of the watershed. The viewers used this comparison in determining 
the increased market value of the properties receiving a direct drainage benefit. 

27. Based on their detailed observations, the viewers determined benefit classifications, 
classified acres and assigned economic benefit on a per acre basis.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 164 / 241



[15741-0029/2447550/1] 4

28. The viewers determined that some acres within the watershed of the drainage system, 
i.e. existing wetlands and non-contributing basins, received no benefit from the 
drainage system. 

29. The viewers accounted for the efficiency of the drainage system, as designed, and the 
proximity of lands to and the elevations of lands above the ditch.

30. The viewers applied an economic analysis using sales and income approaches to 
determine the increased value to each classification acre based on the drainage benefit 
provided by the drainage system.

31. The viewers determined the amount of economic benefit to property benefited 
immediately by the drainage system, or for property for which the drainage system can 
become an outlet for drainage, make an outlet more accessible, or otherwise directly 
benefit the property.

32. The viewers determined that the drainage system draws off water from lower, 
previously assessed lands, thereby allowing drainage from unassessed lands to flow 
more readily and escape faster, thus preventing damage to the previously assessed 
lands, and such drainage constitutes a drainage benefit. 

33. The viewers determined economic benefits based on:  (1) an increase in the current 
market value of the property as a result of constructing the project; (2) an increase in 
the potential for agricultural production as a result of constructing the project; or (3) an 
increased value of the property as a result of a potential different land use.  

34. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers determined benefits on 
property that is responsible for increased drainage system maintenance, or increased 
drainage system capacity because the natural drainage on the property has been altered 
or modified to accelerate the drainage of water from the property.

35. Owners of property affected by the redetermination offered comments regarding the 
nature and amount of benefit determined by the viewers.

36. The viewers addressed the concerns of each property owner as they related to the value 
of benefit or damage and the methods used by the viewers.

37. The viewers kept an accurate account of all time engaged in viewing and examination; 
the nature and kind of work done performed; the days each viewer was engaged in said 
works; the amount charged per day by each viewer; and every item of expense incurred 
by the viewers in said work.

38. The viewers’ account of work has been filed with the drainage authority.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 165 / 241



[15741-0029/2447550/1] 5

39. Upon review of information provided to the Drainage Authority during the public 
hearing, the Drainage Authority further finds and confirms that the benefits and 
damages determined in the original proceedings as well as the benefited and damaged 
areas determined in the original proceedings, do not reflect current, existing, actual 
benefits and benefited areas.

40. Based on the record before it, and the comments of those present at the hearing, the 
Drainage Authority determines that the redetermined benefits, as reflected in the 
Viewers’ Report at Exhibit A are proper, reasonable and conform to the drainage code.

Order:

A. The redetermined benefits on CD 19, the amended Viewers’ Report and the Benefits 
and Damages Statement, prepared by the viewers and attached hereto as Exhibits A and 
B are hereby adopted by the Drainage Authority.  

B. The viewers are allowed payment of their account of work. 

C. The County Auditor shall ensure that the redetermined benefits replace the existing 
benefits previously determined for the ditch. 

D. The damages for the acquisition of the grass buffer area shall be paid and the grass 
buffer areas established as required by statute.

E. The Drainage Authority staff is directed to work with the County Recorder’s office to 
ensure that the drainage system and the grass buffer area acquisition is reflected on the 
property record of affected landowners. 

After discussion, the Board Chair called the question.  The question was on the adoption of the 
foregoing findings and order and there were __ yes and __ no (Commissioner Connolly absent).

Upon vote, the Board Chair declared the Resolution passed and the findings and order adopted.

Dated this 12th day of December 2017.

LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
SEATED AS DRAINAGE AUTHORITY UNDER 
STATUTES CHAPTER 103E FOR LE SUEUR COUNTY 
DITCH 19

By____________________________________
Chairperson

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 166 / 241



[15741-0029/2447550/1] 6

Attest:

______________________________________
County Administrator

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 167 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 168 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 169 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 170 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 171 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 172 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 173 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 174 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 175 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 176 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 177 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 178 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 179 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 180 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 181 / 241



[15741-0025/2211654/1] 1

STATE OF MINNESOTA
LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

SEATED AS DRAINAGE AUTHORITY UNDER STATUTES CHAPTER 103E
FOR LE SUEUR COUNTY DITCH 28

The matter of the Redetermination of Benefits 
for Le Sueur County Ditch 28

Findings and Order Adopting 
Redetermined Benefits 

At a public hearing conducted by the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners, 
Drainage Authority for Le Sueur County Ditch 28 (CD 28), on December 12, 2017, continued 
from November 30, 2017, Commissioner __________ moved, seconded by Commissioner 
______________ for adoption of the following Findings and Order:

Findings:

1. CD 28 was originally established and constructed in 1906. 

2. The ditch system consists of an open ditch drainage system. 

3. The benefits determined in the original establishment anticipated certain farming and 

drainage practices based on existing practices in 1906. 

4. By order dated January 19, 2016, the Board initiated a redetermination of benefits on 

CD 28 based on a finding that since the original determination of benefits and damages, 

land uses and drainage practices have changed to accelerate and increase to flow of 

water to the drainage system changing the nature and value of benefits accruing to 

lands from construction of CD 28.

5. Additionally, the Board found that since the original determination of benefits and 

damages, modification to the outlet of Renneberg Lake, in section 15 of Derrynane 

Township has changed the nature of benefits accruing from the original construction of 

CD 28 and that additional lands, not previously determined to be benefitted have 

improved drainage to take advantage of CD 28 as an outlet for drainage.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 182 / 241



[15741-0025/2211654/1] 2

6. The system provides an outlet for lands in Sections 9, 10, 14, 15, 16 and 23 in Derrynane 
Township, Le Sueur County.

7. By separate order the Board appointed Ron Ringquist, Bill Anderson and Allan Kerber as 
viewers for the redetermination of benefits.

8. Upon taking their oaths, the viewers initiated a redetermination of benefits according 
statutes chapter 103E. 

9. Under Minnesota Statutes § 103E.351 subdivision 1, the viewers obligation is to proceed 
as provided for viewers and the Viewers' Report in sections 103E.311 to 103E.321.  
Under § 103E.311, they are obligated to determine the benefits and damages to all 
property affected by the drainage project and make a Viewers' Report.  

10. The viewers completed their report which included a benefits and damages statement 
on October 2, 2017, for all property affected by the drainage project and filed their 
report with the Drainage Authority.

11. The Drainage Authority prepared Property Owners’ Reports and mailed them to the 
owners of property identified in the Viewers’ Report.

12. Property Owners’ Reports were mailed on November 13, 2017.

13. Notice of the hearing was posted not later than November 13, 2017, at the Le Sueur 
County Courthouse and remained through the date of the Final Hearing.

14. Notice of the hearing was published on November 6, 16 and 23, 2017, in the 
Montgomery Messenger, November 8, 15 and 22, 2017, in the Le Center Leader and Le 
Sueur News-Herald, legal newspapers in general circulation in the area of CD 28.

15. Notice of the hearing was mailed within one week after the first publication, but not 
later than November 13, 2017, to owners of properties identified in the Viewers’ Report, 
governmental units affected by the project and the commissioner of the Minnesota 
Department of Natural Resources.

16. Evidence of all actions in this matter, including preliminary orders, appointments, oaths, 
affidavits of mailing, publication and posting as well as hearing agendas and 
presentation materials are present in the record of proceedings and are incorporated 
herein by reference.

17. The final hearing on the viewers’ redetermination of benefits was held on November 30, 
2017, and continued to December 12, 2017. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 183 / 241



[15741-0025/2211654/1] 3

18. At the hearing, the viewers appeared and presented the Viewers’ Report, Benefits and 
Damages Statement and redetermined benefits.  The viewers further provided detail of 
the viewing process and the information used by the viewers to:  (1) verify the boundary 
of the watershed of the Ditch; (2) verify and confirm the existence of drainage benefit; 
and (3) determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 
construction of CD 28.

19. The viewers included, in their determinations, the amount of damages necessary to 
acquire and establish a one rod grass buffer strip along all reaches of open ditch on CD 
28.

20. Members of the public attended the hearing and asked questions or made comments 
regarding the redetermination of benefits.

21. Written comments were received and read into the record along with responses.

22. At the conclusion of public comment during the hearing, the Board adopted a motion 
to: close the hearing to public comment; direct staff to prepare findings and an order 
consistent with the proceedings, that the draft findings and order be written to affect 
adoption of the determined benefits and confirmation of the viewers’ reports; and 
continue the hearing to the Board’s regular meeting on Tuesday, December 12, 2017, at 
11:00 a.m. in the Commissioners’ Room of the Le Sueur County Courthouse, or by 
adjournment to an appropriate time on the Board’s agenda, at which meeting the Board 
will consider findings and an order as discussed.

23. The Viewers’ Report is attached as Exhibit A. 

24. The viewers prepared a Benefits and Damages Statement outlining the basis of their 
benefits and damages determinations. The Benefits and Damages Statement is attached 
as Exhibit B. 

25. The viewers reviewed all property within the drainage areas of the drainage system as 
part of the redetermination of benefits process.

26. The viewers determined the amount of damages to be paid for the acquisition of 
property for the establishment of best management practices, including grass strips, 
necessary to control erosion, sedimentation, improve water quality, or maintain the 
efficiency of the drainage system as required under statutes section 103E.021. The 
viewers compared sales in the area in arriving at an average sales price used in 
establishing a payment rate.

27. The viewers used maps, LiDAR data and other information, along with visual inspection 
of the watershed of the drainage system to determine the boundaries of the benefiting 
area.  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 184 / 241



[15741-0025/2211654/1] 4

28. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers paid particular attention to 
altered land use and drainage alterations which facilitate the removal of water from 
property directing it to the drainage system.

29. To determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 
drainage system, the viewers conducted a condition comparison comparing the 
expected, pre-ditch, unaltered state of the watershed to the existing, altered and 
improved condition of the watershed. The viewers used this comparison in determining 
the increased market value of the properties receiving a direct drainage benefit. 

30. Based on their detailed observations, the viewers determined benefit classifications, 
classified acres and assigned economic benefit on a per acre basis.

31. The viewers determined that some acres within the watershed of the drainage system, 
i.e. existing wetlands and non-contributing basins, received no benefit from the 
drainage system. 

32. The viewers accounted for the efficiency of the drainage system, as designed, and the 
proximity of lands to and the elevations of lands above the ditch.

33. The viewers applied an economic analysis using sales and income approaches to 
determine the increased value to each classification acre based on the drainage benefit 
provided by the drainage system.

34. The viewers determined the amount of economic benefit to property benefited 
immediately by the drainage system, or for property for which the drainage system can 
become an outlet for drainage, make an outlet more accessible, or otherwise directly 
benefit the property.

35. The viewers determined that the drainage system draws off water from lower, 
previously assessed lands, thereby allowing drainage from unassessed lands to flow 
more readily and escape faster, thus preventing damage to the previously assessed 
lands, and such drainage constitutes a drainage benefit. 

36. The viewers determined economic benefits based on:  (1) an increase in the current 
market value of the property as a result of constructing the project; (2) an increase in 
the potential for agricultural production as a result of constructing the project; or (3) an 
increased value of the property as a result of a potential different land use.  

37. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers determined benefits on 
property that is responsible for increased drainage system maintenance, or increased 
drainage system capacity because the natural drainage on the property has been altered 
or modified to accelerate the drainage of water from the property.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 185 / 241



[15741-0025/2211654/1] 5

38. Owners of property affected by the redetermination offered comments regarding the 
nature and amount of benefit determined by the viewers.

39. The viewers addressed the concerns of each property owner as they related to the value 
of benefit or damage and the methods used by the viewers.

40. The viewers kept an accurate account of all time engaged in viewing and examination; 
the nature and kind of work done performed; the days each viewer was engaged in said 
works; the amount charged per day by each viewer; and every item of expense incurred 
by the viewers in said work.

41. The viewers’ account of work has been filed with the drainage authority.

42. Upon review of information provided to the Drainage Authority during the public 
hearing, the Drainage Authority further finds and confirms that the benefits and 
damages determined in the original proceedings as well as the benefited and damaged 
areas determined in the original proceedings, do not reflect current, existing, actual 
benefits and benefited areas.

43. Based on the record before it, and the comments of those present at the hearing, the 
Drainage Authority determines that the redetermined benefits, as reflected in the 
Viewers’ Report at Exhibit A are proper, reasonable and conform to the drainage code.

Order:

A. The redetermined benefits on CD 28, the amended Viewers’ Report and the Benefits 
and Damages Statement, prepared by the viewers and attached hereto as Exhibits A and 
B are hereby adopted by the Drainage Authority.  

B. The viewers are allowed payment of their account of work. 

C. The County Auditor shall ensure that the redetermined benefits replace the existing 
benefits previously determined for the ditch. 

D. The damages for the acquisition of the grass buffer area shall be paid and the grass 
buffer areas established as required by statute.

E. The Drainage Authority staff is directed to work with the County Recorder’s office to 
ensure that the drainage system and the grass buffer area acquisition is reflected on the 
property record of affected landowners. 

After discussion, the Board Chair called the question.  The question was on the adoption of the 
foregoing findings and order and there were __ yes and __ no (Commissioner Connelly absent).

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 186 / 241



[15741-0025/2211654/1] 6

Upon vote, the Board Chair declared the Resolution passed and the findings and order adopted.

Dated this 12th day of December, 2017.

LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
SEATED AS DRAINAGE AUTHORITY UNDER 
STATUTES CHAPTER 103E FOR LE SUEUR COUNTY 
DITCH 28

By____________________________________
Chairperson

Attest:

______________________________________
County Administrator

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 187 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 188 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 189 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 190 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 191 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 192 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 193 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 194 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 195 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 196 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 197 / 241



[15741-0036/2769922/1] 1

STATE OF MINNESOTA
LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

SEATED AS DRAINAGE AUTHORITY UNDER STATUTES CHAPTER 103E
FOR LE SUEUR COUNTY DITCH 42

The matter of the Redetermination of Benefits 
for Le Sueur County Ditch 42

Findings and Order Adopting 
Redetermined Benefits 

At a public hearing conducted by the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners, 
Drainage Authority for Le Sueur County Ditch 42 (CD 42), on December 12, 2017, continued 
from November 30, 2017, Commissioner _________________ moved, seconded by 
Commissioner _____________ for adoption of the following Findings and Order:

Findings:

1. CD 42 was established in 1914 and subsequently improved in 1949. Benefits for LCD 42 
were determined concurrent with establishment in 1914 and improvement benefits 
were determined in 1949, prior to the initiation of modern, intensive farming and 
drainage practices within the County.

2. CD 42 consists of an open ditch drainage system. 

3. The outlet for CD 42 is Le Sueur County Ditch 19. 

4. The system provides an outlet for lands in Sections 24, 25 and 36 in Derrynane 
Township, and Sections 19 and 30 in Lanesburgh Township, all in Le Sueur County.

5. Benefits and damages for CD 42 have not been redetermined since original 
establishment.  

6. Based on its finding that the conditions required for the initiation of a redetermination 
of benefits exist, that the original benefits and damages do not reflect reasonable 
present day land values and the benefitted areas have changed for CD 42, the Drainage 
Authority ordered a redetermination of benefits and appointed Ron Ringquist, Bill 
Anderson and Allan Kerber as viewers for the redetermination of benefits.

7. Upon taking their oath, the viewers initiated a redetermination of benefits according 
statutes chapter 103E. 

8. Under Minnesota Statutes § 103E.351 subdivision 1, the viewers obligation is to proceed 
as provided for viewers and the Viewers' Report in sections 103E.311 to 103E.321.  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 198 / 241



[15741-0036/2769922/1] 2

Under section 103E.311, they are obligated to determine the benefits and damages to 
all property affected by the drainage project and make a Viewers' Report.  

9. The viewers completed their report which included a benefits and damages statement 
on October 2, 2017, for all property affected by the drainage project and filed their 
report with the Drainage Authority.

10. The Drainage Authority prepared Property Owners’ Reports and mailed them to the 
owners of property identified in the Viewers’ Report.

11. Property Owners’ Reports were mailed on November 13, 2017.

12. Notice of the hearing was posted not later than November 13, 2017 at the Le Sueur 
County Courthouse and remained through the date of the Final Hearing.

13. Notice of the hearing was published November 9, 16 and 23 in the New Prague Times 
and Montgomery Messenger, legal newspapers in general circulation in the area of CD 
42.

14. Notice of the hearing was mailed within one week after the first publication, but not 
later than November 13, 2017, to owners of properties identified in the Viewers’ Report, 
governmental units affected by the project and the commissioner of the Minnesota 
Department of Natural Resources.

15. Evidence of all actions in this matter, including preliminary orders, appointments, oaths, 
affidavits of mailing, publication and posting as well as hearing agendas and 
presentation materials are present in the record of proceedings and are incorporated 
herein by reference.

16. The final hearing on the viewers’ redetermination of benefits was held on November 30, 
2017, and continued to December 12, 2017. 

17. At the hearing, the viewers appeared and presented the Viewers’ Report, Benefits and 
Damages Statement and redetermined benefits.  The viewers further provided detail of 
the viewing process and the information used by the viewers to:  (1) verify the boundary 
of the watershed of the Ditch; (2) verify and confirm the existence of drainage benefit; 
and (3) determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 
construction of CD 42.

18. The viewers included, in their determinations, the amount of damages necessary to 
acquire and establish a one rod grass buffer strip along all reaches of open ditch on CD 
42.  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 199 / 241



[15741-0036/2769922/1] 3

19. Members of the public attended the hearing and asked questions or made comments 
regarding the redetermination of benefits.

20. At the conclusion of public comment during the hearing, the Board adopted a motion 
to: close the hearing to public comment; direct staff to prepare findings and an order 
consistent with the proceedings, that the draft findings and order be written to affect 
adoption of the determined benefits and confirmation of the viewers’ reports; and 
continue the hearing to the Board’s regular meeting on Tuesday, December 12, 2017, at 
11:00 a.m. in the Commissioners’ Room of the Le Sueur County Courthouse, or by 
adjournment to an appropriate time on the Board’s agenda, at which meeting the Board 
will consider findings and an order as discussed.

21. The Viewers’ Report is attached as Exhibit A. 

22. The viewers prepared a Benefits and Damages Statement outlining the basis of their 
benefits and damages determinations. The Benefits and Damages Statement is attached 
as Exhibit B. 

23. The viewers reviewed all property within the drainage areas of the drainage system as 
part of the redetermination of benefits process.

24. The viewers determined the amount of damages to be paid for the acquisition of 
property for the establishment of best management practices, including grass strips, 
necessary to control erosion, sedimentation, improve water quality, or maintain the 
efficiency of the drainage system as required under statutes section 103E.021. The 
viewers compared sales in the area in arriving at an average sales price used in 
establishing a payment rate.

25. The viewers used maps, LiDAR data and other information, along with visual inspection 
of the watershed of the drainage system to determine the boundaries of the benefiting 
area.  

26. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers paid particular attention to 
altered land use and drainage alterations which facilitate the removal of water from 
property directing it to the drainage system.

27. To determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 
drainage system, the viewers conducted a condition comparison comparing the 
expected, pre-ditch, unaltered state of the watershed to the existing, altered and 
improved condition of the watershed. The viewers used this comparison in determining 
the increased market value of the properties receiving a direct drainage benefit. 

28. Based on their detailed observations, the viewers determined benefit classifications, 
classified acres and assigned economic benefit on a per acre basis.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 200 / 241



[15741-0036/2769922/1] 4

29. The viewers determined that some acres within the watershed of the drainage system, 
i.e. existing wetlands and non-contributing basins, received no benefit from the 
drainage system. 

30. The viewers accounted for the efficiency of the drainage system, as designed, and the 
proximity of lands to and the elevations of lands above the ditch.

31. The viewers applied an economic analysis using sales and income approaches to 
determine the increased value to each classification acre based on the drainage benefit 
provided by the drainage system.

32. The viewers determined the amount of economic benefit to property benefited 
immediately by the drainage system, or for property for which the drainage system can 
become an outlet for drainage, make an outlet more accessible, or otherwise directly 
benefit the property.

33. The viewers determined that the drainage system draws off water from lower, 
previously assessed lands, thereby allowing drainage from unassessed lands to flow 
more readily and escape faster, thus preventing damage to the previously assessed 
lands, and such drainage constitutes a drainage benefit. 

34. The viewers determined economic benefits based on:  (1) an increase in the current 
market value of the property as a result of constructing the project; (2) an increase in 
the potential for agricultural production as a result of constructing the project; or (3) an 
increased value of the property as a result of a potential different land use.  

35. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers determined benefits on 
property that is responsible for increased drainage system maintenance, or increased 
drainage system capacity because the natural drainage on the property has been altered 
or modified to accelerate the drainage of water from the property.

36. Owners of property affected by the redetermination offered comments regarding the 
nature and amount of benefit determined by the viewers.

37. The viewers addressed the concerns of each property owner as they related to the value 
of benefit or damage and the methods used by the viewers.

38. The viewers kept an accurate account of all time engaged in viewing and examination; 
the nature and kind of work done performed; the days each viewer was engaged in said 
works; the amount charged per day by each viewer; and every item of expense incurred 
by the viewers in said work.

39. The viewers’ account of work has been filed with the drainage authority.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 201 / 241



[15741-0036/2769922/1] 5

40. Upon review of information provided to the Drainage Authority during the public 
hearing, the Drainage Authority further finds and confirms that the benefits and 
damages determined in the original proceedings as well as the benefited and damaged 
areas determined in the original proceedings, do not reflect current, existing, actual 
benefits and benefited areas.

41. Based on the record before it, and the comments of those present at the hearing, the 
Drainage Authority determines that the redetermined benefits, as reflected in the 
Viewers’ Report at Exhibit A are proper, reasonable and conform to the drainage code.

Order:

A. The redetermined benefits on CD 42, the amended Viewers’ Report and the Benefits 
and Damages Statement, prepared by the viewers and attached hereto as Exhibits A and 
B are hereby adopted by the Drainage Authority.  

B. The viewers are allowed payment of their account of work. 

C. The County Auditor shall ensure that the redetermined benefits replace the existing 
benefits previously determined for the ditch. 

D. The damages for the acquisition of the grass buffer area shall be paid and the grass 
buffer areas established as required by statute.

E. The Drainage Authority staff is directed to work with the County Recorder’s office to 
ensure that the drainage system and the grass buffer area acquisition is reflected on the 
property record of affected landowners. 

After discussion, the Board Chair called the question.  The question was on the adoption of the 
foregoing findings and order and there were __ yes and __ no (Commissioner Connelly absent).

Upon vote, the Board Chair declared the Resolution passed and the findings and order adopted.

Dated this 12th day of December, 2017.

LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
SEATED AS DRAINAGE AUTHORITY UNDER 
STATUTES CHAPTER 103E FOR LE SUEUR COUNTY 
DITCH 42

By____________________________________
Chairperson

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 202 / 241



[15741-0036/2769922/1] 6

Attest:

______________________________________
County Administrator

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 203 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 204 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 205 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 206 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 207 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 208 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 209 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 210 / 241



[15741-0028/2339606/1] 1

STATE OF MINNESOTA
LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

SEATED AS DRAINAGE AUTHORITY UNDER STATUTES CHAPTER 103E
FOR LE SUEUR COUNTY DITCH 52

The matter of the Redetermination of Benefits 
for Le Sueur County Ditch 52

Findings and Order Adopting 
Redetermined Benefits 

At a public hearing conducted by the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners, 
Drainage Authority for Le Sueur County Ditch 52 (CD 52), on December 12, 2017, continued 
from November 30, 2017, Commissioner _________________ moved, seconded by 
Commissioner _____________ for adoption of the following Findings and Order:

Findings:

1. CD 52 was established in 1950. Original benefits for CD 52 were determined concurrent 
with establishment in 1950, prior to the enactment of various laws, regulations, and 
programs protecting wetlands and prior to initiation of modern, intensive farming and 
drainage practices within the County.

2. CD 52 consists of an open ditch drainage system. 

3. The system provides an outlet for lands in Sections 26, 27, 34 and 35 in Sharon 
Township, Le Sueur County.

4. Benefits and damages for CD 52 had not been redetermined since original 
establishment.  

5. Based on its finding that the conditions required for the initiation of a redetermination 
of benefits exist, that the original benefits and damages do not reflect reasonable 
present day land values and the benefitted areas have changed for CD 52, the Drainage 
Authority ordered a redetermination of benefits and appointed Ron Ringquist, Bill 
Anderson and Allan Kerber as viewers for the redetermination of benefits.

6. Upon taking their oath, the viewers initiated a redetermination of benefits according 
statutes chapter 103E. 

7. Under Minnesota Statutes § 103E.351 subdivision 1, the viewers obligation is to proceed 
as provided for viewers and the Viewers' Report in sections 103E.311 to 103E.321.  
Under section 103E.311, they are obligated to determine the benefits and damages to 
all property affected by the drainage project and make a Viewers' Report.  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 211 / 241



[15741-0028/2339606/1] 2

8. The viewers completed their report which included a benefits and damages statement 
in October 2, 2017, for all property affected by the drainage project and filed their 
report with the Drainage Authority.

9. The Drainage Authority prepared Property Owners’ Reports and mailed them to the 
owners of property identified in the Viewers’ Report.

10. Property Owners’ Reports were mailed on November 13, 2017.

11. Notice of the hearing was posted not later than November 13, 2017, at the Le Sueur 
County Courthouse and remained through the date of the Final Hearing.

12. Notice of the hearing was published November 9, 16 and 23 in the Montgomery 
Messenger and the Le Center Leader, legal newspapers in general circulation in the area 
of CD 52.

13. Notice of the hearing was mailed within one week after the first publication, but not 
later than November 13, 2017, to owners of properties identified in the Viewers’ Report, 
governmental units affected by the project and the commissioner of the Minnesota 
Department of Natural Resources.

14. Evidence of all actions in this matter, including preliminary orders, appointments, oaths, 
affidavits of mailing, publication and posting as well as hearing agendas and 
presentation materials are present in the record of proceedings and are incorporated 
herein by reference.

15. The final hearing on the viewers’ redetermination of benefits was held on November 30, 
2017, and continued to December 12, 2017. 

16. At the hearing, the viewers appeared and presented the Viewers’ Report, Benefits and 
Damages Statement and redetermined benefits.  The viewers further provided detail of 
the viewing process and the information used by the viewers to:  (1) verify the boundary 
of the watershed of the Ditch; (2) verify and confirm the existence of drainage benefit; 
and (3) determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 
construction of CD 52.

17. The viewers included, in their determinations, the amount of damages necessary to 
acquire and establish a one rod grass buffer strip along all reaches of open ditch on CD 
52.  

18. Members of the public attended the hearing and asked questions or made comments 
regarding the redetermination of benefits.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 212 / 241



[15741-0028/2339606/1] 3

19. At the conclusion of public comment during the hearing, the Board adopted a motion 
to: close the hearing to public comment; direct staff to prepare findings and an order 
consistent with the proceedings, that the draft findings and order be written to affect 
adoption of the determined benefits and confirmation of the viewers’ reports; and 
continue the hearing to the Board’s regular meeting on Tuesday, December 12, 2017, at 
11:00 a.m. in the Commissioners’ Room of the Le Sueur County Courthouse, or by 
adjournment to an appropriate time on the Board’s agenda, at which meeting the Board 
will consider findings and an order as discussed.  

20. The Viewers’ Report is attached as Exhibit A. 

21. The viewers prepared a Benefits and Damages Statement outlining the basis of their 
benefits and damages determinations. The Benefits and Damages Statement is attached 
as Exhibit B. 

22. The viewers reviewed all property within the drainage areas of the drainage system as 
part of the redetermination of benefits process.

23. The viewers determined the amount of damages to be paid for the acquisition of 
property for the establishment of best management practices, including grass strips, 
necessary to control erosion, sedimentation, improve water quality, or maintain the 
efficiency of the drainage system as required under statutes section 103E.021. The 
viewers compared sales in the area in arriving at an average sales price used in 
establishing a payment rate.

24. The viewers used maps, LiDAR data and other information, along with visual inspection 
of the watershed of the drainage system to determine the boundaries of the benefiting 
area.  

25. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers paid particular attention to 
altered land use and drainage alterations which facilitate the removal of water from 
property directing it to the drainage system.

26. To determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 
drainage system, the viewers conducted a condition comparison comparing the 
expected, pre-ditch, unaltered state of the watershed to the existing, altered and 
improved condition of the watershed. The viewers used this comparison in determining 
the increased market value of the properties receiving a direct drainage benefit. 

27. Based on their detailed observations, the viewers determined benefit classifications, 
classified acres and assigned economic benefit on a per acre basis.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 213 / 241



[15741-0028/2339606/1] 4

28. The viewers determined that some acres within the watershed of the drainage system, 
i.e. existing wetlands and non-contributing basins, received no benefit from the 
drainage system. 

29. The viewers accounted for the efficiency of the drainage system, as designed, and the 
proximity of lands to and the elevations of lands above the ditch.

30. The viewers applied an economic analysis using sales and income approaches to 
determine the increased value to each classification acre based on the drainage benefit 
provided by the drainage system.

31. The viewers determined the amount of economic benefit to property benefited 
immediately by the drainage system, or for property for which the drainage system can 
become an outlet for drainage, make an outlet more accessible, or otherwise directly 
benefit the property.

32. The viewers determined that the drainage system draws off water from lower, 
previously assessed lands, thereby allowing drainage from unassessed lands to flow 
more readily and escape faster, thus preventing damage to the previously assessed 
lands, and such drainage constitutes a drainage benefit. 

33. The viewers determined economic benefits based on:  (1) an increase in the current 
market value of the property as a result of constructing the project; (2) an increase in 
the potential for agricultural production as a result of constructing the project; or (3) an 
increased value of the property as a result of a potential different land use.  

34. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers determined benefits on 
property that is responsible for increased drainage system maintenance, or increased 
drainage system capacity because the natural drainage on the property has been altered 
or modified to accelerate the drainage of water from the property.

35. Owners of property affected by the redetermination offered comments regarding the 
nature and amount of benefit determined by the viewers.

36. The viewers addressed the concerns of each property owner as they related to the value 
of benefit or damage and the methods used by the viewers.

37. The viewers kept an accurate account of all time engaged in viewing and examination; 
the nature and kind of work done performed; the days each viewer was engaged in said 
works; the amount charged per day by each viewer; and every item of expense incurred 
by the viewers in said work.

38. The viewers’ account of work has been filed with the drainage authority.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 214 / 241



[15741-0028/2339606/1] 5

39. Upon review of information provided to the Drainage Authority during the public 
hearing, the Drainage Authority further finds and confirms that the benefits and 
damages determined in the original proceedings as well as the benefited and damaged 
areas determined in the original proceedings, do not reflect current, existing, actual 
benefits and benefited areas.

40. Based on the record before it, and the comments of those present at the hearing, the 
Drainage Authority determines that the redetermined benefits, as reflected in the 
Viewers’ Report at Exhibit A are proper, reasonable and conform to the drainage code.

Order:

A. The redetermined benefits on CD 52, the amended Viewers’ Report and the Benefits 
and Damages Statement, prepared by the viewers and attached hereto as Exhibits A and 
B are hereby adopted by the Drainage Authority.  

B. The viewers are allowed payment of their account of work. 

C. The County Auditor shall ensure that the redetermined benefits replace the existing 
benefits previously determined for the ditch. 

D. The damages for the acquisition of the grass buffer area shall be paid and the grass 
buffer areas established as required by statute.

E. The Drainage Authority staff is directed to work with the County Recorder’s office to 
ensure that the drainage system and the grass buffer area acquisition is reflected on the 
property record of affected landowners. 

After discussion, the Board Chair called the question.  The question was on the adoption of the 
foregoing findings and order and there were __ yes and __ no (Commissioner Connelly absent).

Upon vote, the Board Chair declared the Resolution passed and the findings and order adopted.

Dated this 12th day of December 2017.

LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
SEATED AS DRAINAGE AUTHORITY UNDER 
STATUTES CHAPTER 103E FOR LE SUEUR COUNTY 
DITCH 52

By____________________________________
Chairperson

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 215 / 241



[15741-0028/2339606/1] 6

Attest:

______________________________________
County Administrator

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 216 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 217 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 218 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 219 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 220 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 221 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 222 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 223 / 241



[15741-0026/2211660/1] 1

STATE OF MINNESOTA
LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

SEATED AS DRAINAGE AUTHORITY UNDER STATUTES CHAPTER 103E
FOR LE SUEUR COUNTY DITCH 69

The matter of the Redetermination of Benefits 
for Le Sueur County Ditch 69

Findings and Order Adopting 
Redetermined Benefits 

At a public hearing conducted by the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners, 
Drainage Authority for Le Sueur County Ditch 69 (CD 69), on December 12, 2017, continued 
from November 30, 2017, Commissioner _____ moved, seconded by Commissioner _______ for 
adoption of the following Findings and Order:

Findings:

1. CD 69 was originally established and constructed in 1964. 

2. The ditch system consists of an open ditch drainage system. 

3. CD 69 outlets to Renneberg Lake in section 15 of Derrynane Township. Renneberg Lake 
outlets to CD 28.

4. The system provides an outlet for lands in Sections 13, 14, 23, 24 and 25 in Derrynane 
Township, Le Sueur County.

5. Benefits and damages for CD 69 had not been redetermined since original 
establishment.  

6. Based on its finding that the conditions required for the initiation of a redetermination 
of benefits exist, that the original benefits and damages do not reflect reasonable 
present day land values and the benefitted areas have changed for CD 69, the Drainage 
Authority ordered a redetermination of benefits and appointed Ron Ringquist, Bill 
Anderson and Allan Kerber as viewers for the redetermination of benefits.

7. Upon taking their oath, the viewers initiated a redetermination of benefits according 
statutes chapter 103E. 

8. Under Minnesota Statutes § 103E.351 subdivision 1, the viewers obligation is to proceed 
as provided for viewers and the Viewers' Report in sections 103E.311 to 103E.321.  
Under section 103E.311, they are obligated to determine the benefits and damages to 
all property affected by the drainage project and make a Viewers' Report.  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 224 / 241



[15741-0026/2211660/1] 2

9. The viewers completed their report which included a benefits and damages statement 
on October 2, 2017, for all property affected by the drainage project and filed their 
report with the Drainage Authority.

10. The Drainage Authority prepared Property Owners’ Reports and mailed them to the 
owners of property identified in the Viewers’ Report.

11. Property Owners’ Reports were mailed on November 13, 2017.

12. Notice of the hearing was posted not later than November 13, 2017, at the Le Sueur 
County Courthouse and remained through the date of the Final Hearing.

13. Notice of the hearing was published on November 9, 16 and 23, 2017 in Montgomery 
Messenger and New Prague Times, legal newspapers in general circulation in the area of 
CD 69.

14. Notice of the hearing was mailed within one week after the first publication, but not 
later than November 13, 2017, to owners of properties identified in the Viewers’ Report, 
governmental units affected by the project and the commissioner of the MDNR.

15. Evidence of all actions in this matter, including preliminary orders, appointments, oaths, 
affidavits of mailing, publication and posting as well as hearing agendas and 
presentation materials are present in the record of proceedings and are incorporated 
herein by reference.

16. The final hearing on the viewers’ redetermination of benefits was held on November 30, 
2017, and continued to December 12, 2017. 

17. At the hearing, the viewers appeared and presented the Viewers’ Report, Benefits and 
Damages Statement and redetermined benefits.  The viewers further provided detail of 
the viewing process and the information used by the viewers to:  (1) verify the boundary 
of the watershed of the Ditch; (2) verify and confirm the existence of drainage benefit; 
and (3) determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 
construction of CD 69.

18. The viewers included, in their determinations, the amount of damages necessary to 
acquire and establish a one rod grass buffer strip along all reaches of open ditch on CD 
69.  

19. No members of the public attended the hearing and asked questions or made 
comments regarding the redetermination of benefits.

20. At the conclusion of public comment during the hearing, the Board adopted a motion 
to: close the hearing to public comment; direct staff to prepare findings and an order 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 225 / 241



[15741-0026/2211660/1] 3

consistent with the proceedings, that the draft findings and order be written to affect 
adoption of the determined benefits and confirmation of the viewers’ reports; and 
continue the hearing to the Board’s regular meeting on Tuesday, December 12, 2017, at 
11:00 a.m. in the Commissioners’ Room of the Le Sueur County Courthouse, or by 
adjournment to an appropriate time on the Board’s agenda, at which meeting the Board 
will consider findings and an order as discussed.  

21. The Viewers’ Report is attached as Exhibit A. 

22. The viewers prepared a Benefits and Damages Statement outlining the basis of their 
benefits and damages determinations. The Benefits and Damages Statement is attached 
as Exhibit B. 

23. The viewers reviewed all property within the drainage areas of the drainage system as 
part of the redetermination of benefits process.

24. The viewers determined the amount of damages to be paid for the acquisition of 
property for the establishment of best management practices, including grass strips, 
necessary to control erosion, sedimentation, improve water quality, or maintain the 
efficiency of the drainage system as required under statutes section 103E.021. The 
viewers compared sales in the area in arriving at an average sales price used in 
establishing a payment rate.

25. The viewers used maps, LiDAR data and other information, along with visual inspection 
of the watershed of the drainage system to determine the boundaries of the benefiting 
area.  

26. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers paid particular attention to 
altered land use and drainage alterations which facilitate the removal of water from 
property directing it to the drainage system.

27. To determine the economic benefit to lands deriving a drainage benefit from the 
drainage system, the viewers conducted a condition comparison comparing the 
expected, pre-ditch, unaltered state of the watershed to the existing, altered and 
improved condition of the watershed. The viewers used this comparison in determining 
the increased market value of the properties receiving a direct drainage benefit. 

28. Based on their detailed observations, the viewers determined benefit classifications, 
classified acres and assigned economic benefit on a per acre basis.

29. The viewers determined that some acres within the watershed of the drainage system, 
i.e. existing wetlands and non-contributing basins, received no benefit from the 
drainage system. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 226 / 241



[15741-0026/2211660/1] 4

30. The viewers accounted for the efficiency of the drainage system, as designed, and the 
proximity of lands to and the elevations of lands above the ditch.

31. The viewers applied an economic analysis using sales and income approaches to 
determine the increased value to each classification acre based on the drainage benefit 
provided by the drainage system.

32. The viewers determined the amount of economic benefit to property benefited 
immediately by the drainage system, or for property for which the drainage system can 
become an outlet for drainage, make an outlet more accessible, or otherwise directly 
benefit the property.

33. The viewers determined that the drainage system draws off water from lower, 
previously assessed lands, thereby allowing drainage from unassessed lands to flow 
more readily and escape faster, thus preventing damage to the previously assessed 
lands, and such drainage constitutes a drainage benefit. 

34. The viewers determined economic benefits based on:  (1) an increase in the current 
market value of the property as a result of constructing the project; (2) an increase in 
the potential for agricultural production as a result of constructing the project; or (3) an 
increased value of the property as a result of a potential different land use.  

35. Within the watershed of the drainage system, the viewers determined benefits on 
property that is responsible for increased drainage system maintenance, or increased 
drainage system capacity because the natural drainage on the property has been altered 
or modified to accelerate the drainage of water from the property.

36. The viewers kept an accurate account of all time engaged in viewing and examination; 
the nature and kind of work done performed; the days each viewer was engaged in said 
works; the amount charged per day by each viewer; and every item of expense incurred 
by the viewers in said work.

37. The viewers’ account of work has been filed with the drainage authority.

38. Upon review of information provided to the Drainage Authority during the public 
hearing, the Drainage Authority further finds and confirms that the benefits and 
damages determined in the original proceedings as well as the benefited and damaged 
areas determined in the original proceedings, do not reflect current, existing, actual 
benefits and benefited areas.

39. Based on the record before it, and the comments of those present at the hearing, the 
Drainage Authority determines that the redetermined benefits, as reflected in the 
Viewers’ Report at Exhibit A are proper, reasonable and conform to the drainage code.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 227 / 241



[15741-0026/2211660/1] 5

Order:

A. The redetermined benefits on CD 69, the amended Viewers’ Report and the Benefits 
and Damages Statement, prepared by the viewers and attached hereto as Exhibits A and 
B are hereby adopted by the Drainage Authority.  

B. The viewers are allowed payment of their account of work. 

C. The County Auditor shall ensure that the redetermined benefits replace the existing 
benefits previously determined for the ditch. 

D. The damages for the acquisition of the grass buffer area shall be paid and the grass 
buffer areas established as required by statute.

E. The Drainage Authority staff is directed to work with the County Recorder’s office to 
ensure that the drainage system and the grass buffer area acquisition is reflected on the 
property record of affected landowners. 

After discussion, the Board Chair called the question.  The question was on the adoption of the 
foregoing findings and order and there were __ yes and __ no (Commissioner Connelly absent).

Upon vote, the Board Chair declared the Resolution passed and the findings and order adopted.

Dated this 12th day of December, 2017.

LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
SEATED AS DRAINAGE AUTHORITY UNDER 
STATUTES CHAPTER 103E FOR LE SUEUR COUNTY 
DITCH 69

By____________________________________
Chairperson

Attest:

______________________________________
County Administrator

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 228 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 229 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 230 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 231 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 232 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 233 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 234 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 235 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 236 / 241



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 237 / 241



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 12, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 14

11:20 a.m. Darrell Pettis, County Administrator

RE: Miscellaneous

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 238 / 241



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 12, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 15

Commissioner Committee Reports

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 239 / 241



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 12, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 16

Future Meetings

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 240 / 241



Future Meetings
December 2017 – January 2018 

December 2017

Tuesday, Dec. 12, 2017 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.
*CIP Public Hearing, 10:00 a.m.
*Reconvene CD 19, 28, 42, 52 and 69 Hearing, 11:00 a.m.

Thursday, Dec, 14, 2017 P&Z Meeting, 7:00 p.m. at Environmental Services

Tuesday, Dec. 19, 2017 Board Meeting, 4:30 p.m.
* User Fees Public Hearing, 5:50 p.m.
*2018 Budget and Levy Public Hearing 6:00 p.m.

Thursday, Dec. 21, 2017 Board of Adjustment Meeting, 3:00 p.m. at Environmental Services

Monday, Dec. 25, 2017 Offices Closed – Christmas Day

Tuesday, Dec. 26, 2017 No Board Meeting

January 2018

Monday, Jan. 1 Offices Closed – New Year’s Day

Tuesday, Jan. 2 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.
*Board Reorganization, 9:00 a.m.
*CHB Meeting in Waterville

Thursday, Jan. 11 P&Z Meeting, 7:00 p.m. at Environmental Services

Monday, Jan. 15 Offices Closed – Martin Luther King Jr. Day

Tuesday, Jan. 16 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

Thursday, Jan. 18 Board of Adjustment Meeting, 3:00 p.m. at Environmental Services

Tuesday, Jan. 23 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m. 
*9:15 a.m. CD 54 Redetermination and 9:30 a.m. Sanborn petition 
Public Hearings

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/12/2017 Page 241 / 241


